-1!"‘r-

’{*ﬂ

NORTHAMP
BOROUGH COU |

CABINET
AGENDA

Wednesday, 3 March 2010

The Jeffery Room, The Guildhall, St Giles Square,
Northampton NN1 1DE

6:00 pm

Members of the Cabinet:

Councillor:  Brian Hoare (Leader of the Council)
Councillor:  Paul Varnsverry (Deputy Leader)
Councillors: Sally Beardsworth, Richard Church,

Trini Crake, Brian Markham, David Perkins

Chief Executive David Kennedy

If you have any enquiries about this agenda please contact Jo Darby at
jdarby@northampton.gov.uk or 01604 837089



PORTFOLIOS OF CABINET MEMBERS

CABINET MEMBER PORTFOLIO TITLE
Councillor B. Hoare Leader
Partnership and Improvement

Councillor P.D. Varnsverry Deputy Leader
Community Engagement

Councillor S. Beardsworth Housing

Councillor R. Church Planning and Regeneration
Councillor T. Crake Environment

Councillor B Markham Performance and Support
Councillor D. Perkins Finance

SPEAKING AT CABINET MEETINGS

Persons (other than Members) wishing to address Cabinet must register their intention to do so by 12 noon on the day of
the meeting and may speak on any item on that meeting’s agenda.

Registration can be by:

Telephone: (01604) 837101, 837089, 837355, 837356
(Fax 01604 838729)

In writing: The Borough Solicitor,
The Guildhall, St Giles Square, Northampton NN1 1DE
For the attention of the Democratic Services Officer

By e-mail to democraticservices@northampton.gov.uk

Only thirty minutes in total will be allowed for addresses, so that if speakers each take three minutes no more than ten
speakers will be heard. Each speaker will be allowed to speak for a maximum of three minutes at each meeting. Speakers
will normally be heard in the order in which they registered to speak. However, the Chair of Cabinet may decide to depart
from that order in the interest of hearing a greater diversity of views on an item, or hearing views on a greater number of
items. The Chair of Cabinet may also decide to allow a greater number of addresses and a greater time slot subject still to
the maximum three minutes per address for such addresses for items of special public interest.

Members who wish to address Cabinet shall notify the Chair prior to the commencement of the meeting and may speak on
any item on that meeting’s agenda. Such addresses will be for a maximum of three minutes unless the Chair exercises
discretion to allow longer. The time these addresses take will not count towards the thirty minute period referred to above
so as to prejudice any other persons who have registered their wish to speak.

KEY DECISIONS
/2 denotes the issue is a ‘Key’ decision:

e Any decision in relation to the Executive function* which results in the Council incurring expenditure which is, or the
making of saving which are significant having regard to the Council’s budget for the service or function to which the
decision relates. For these purpose the minimum financial threshold will be £50,000;

o  Where decisions are not likely to involve significant expenditure or savings but nevertheless are likely to be significant
in terms of their effects on communities in two or more wards or electoral divisions; and

® For the purpose of interpretation a decision, which is ancillary or incidental to a Key decision, which had been
previously taken by or on behalf of the Council shall not of itself be further deemed to be significant for the purpose of
the definition.



NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL
CABINET

Your attendance is requested at a meeting to be held in The Jeffery Room,
The Guildhall, St Giles Square, Northampton NN1 1DE on Wednesday, 3
March 2010 at 6:00 pm.

D Kennedy
Chief Executive

o & 0N

10.

11.

12.

AGENDA

APOLOGIES

MINUTES

DEPUTATIONS/PUBLIC ADDRESSES
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

ISSUES ARISING FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEES

RENT PAYMENT INCENTIVES
Report of the Director of Housing Services

HUNSBURY HILL DISUSED PUBLIC CONVENIENCES:
REPORT ON OBJECTIONS RECEIVED TO THE PROPOSED
DISPOSAL OF PUBLIC SPACE

Report of the Director of Finance and Support
COUNTYWIDE SCRUTINY ARRANGEMENTS
Report of the Assistant Chief Executive
DELAPRE ABBEY STABLE BLOCK

Report of the Director of Finance and Support
NEIGHBOURHOOD MODEL

Report of the Director of Environment and Culture

LEISURE AND SPORT STRATEGIC BUSINESS REVIEW -
MANAGEMENT OPTIONS APPRAISAL

/22 Report of the Director of Environment and Culture

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS




THE CHAIR TO MOVE:

“THAT THE PUBLIC AND PRESS BE EXCLUDED FROM THE
REMAINDER OF THE MEETING ON THE GROUNDS THAT
THERE IS LIKELY TO BE DISCLOSURE TO THEM OF SUCH
CATEGORIES OF EXEMPT INFORMATION AS DEFINED BY
SECTION 100(1) OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS
LISTED AGAINST SUCH ITEMS OF BUSINESS BY
REFERENCE TO THE APPROPRIATE PARAGRAPH OF
SCHEDULE 12A TO SUCH ACT.”



Agenda ltem 6

Item No.
Appendices =q (™ p
opp ! 'R a 6
Ly
NORTHAMPTON
BOROUGH COUNCIL
CABINET REPORT
Report Title Rent Payment Incentives
AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC

Cabinet Meeting Date:
Key Decision:

Listed on Forward Plan:
Within Policy:

Policy Document:

Directorate:

Accountable Cabinet Member:

Ward(s)

3 March 2010

NO

YES

YES

NO

HOUSING

All

Clir Sally Beardsworth

1. Purpose

1.1 To consider the use of incentives to encourage payment by direct debit and to

encourage tenants to pa

2. Recommendations

y rent on time.

2.1 It is recommended that the following incentive payments be approved for

2010/11:

a)
per quarter,

b)

a quarterly £250 prize draw for those paying by direct debit with two prizes

an end of year prize draw of £250 for those with a clear rent account at the

end of March 2010 and 2011 with two prizes awarded;

a quarterly prize draw of £250 for tenants in arrears who have paid the

agreed amount regularly over the previous 13 weeks. There would be two

prizes per quarter.

19.02.10 FINAL



3. Issues and Choices

3.1

3.1.1

3.1.2

3.1.3

3.2

3.21

3.2.2

3.3

3.3.1

3.3.2

Audit Commission best practice

In its key lines of enquiry document recommending best practice, the audit
commission recommends that incentives should be used to encourage tenants
to stay out of debt or reduce their arrears.

Last year the Council held a prize draw for tenants with a clear rent account.
The first prize was £1,000. There were also four prizes of £500. All those
awarded prizes still have clear rent accounts.

The analysis has shown that there is currently no incentive for those in
arrears, struggling to pay. Such tenants did not have sufficient income to be
able to clear their arrears by the end of the financial year. It is proposed to
target this group of tenants to encourage them to pay by offering an incentive
for those in rent arrears who are maintaining regular agreed payments.

Payment by direct debit

Direct debit is the most cost effective method of paying rent. However, few
tenants use this method to pay. In April 2008, 283 tenants paid by direct
debit. This increased to 725 at the end of December 2009. In order to
increase the number of tenants paying by direct debit, tenants can now
choose from four payment dates. A direct debit awareness campaign
supported by incentives is recommended to increase the number of tenants
who use this payment method.

Increasing the number of tenants paying by direct debit would reduce
collection costs and also free up staff time. It is envisaged that late
payments would reduce and staff could concentrate on those with higher and
more serious arrears.

Choices

Members could choose not to pay incentives. However, this would be against
best practice. Alternatively, Members could decide to keep arrangements as
they are, and have a prize draw only for those with clear rent accounts.
However, this will not be an effective incentive for those tenants in arrears on
low incomes.

It is proposed that tenants will be eligible to win in only one category but there
is the option of not restricting it in this way.

19.02.10 FINAL 2



4. Implications (including financial implications)

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.3.1

4.4

441

4.5

4.5.1

4.6

4.6.1

4.7

4.7.1

Financial Implications

The total costs of £5,000 will be met from within existing resources. This
needs to be considered along side the costs of evictions and loss of rent.
There are approximately 40 evictions per year with an average void revenue
repair cost of £1,500 per void. Rent loss during the void period will be in the
region of £280 per property — more if major repairs are required. These costs
add up to £71,200 per year. These costs do not include officers’ time spent
visiting and working with tenants in arrears.

Policy
None
Resources and Risk

If the incentives are not changed to include those in arrears, there is a risk that
they will be seen as ineffective by the audit commission.

Legal
None arising specifically from this report.

Gambling Act 1985

In view of the fact that tenants are not required to pay a separate amount

from their rent in order to participate in the draw, it is deemed not to be a
licensable activity under the Gambling Act 1985 and hence the activity does
not need to be registered with the local authority.

Equality

None directly

Consultees (Internal and External)
Stakeholders working with those in rent arrears.
How the Proposals deliver Priority Outcomes

The proposals are consistent with the following corporate priorities as outlined
in the Councils’ Corporate Plan

Improve Housing Health and Well-being

Reduce homelessness
Encouraged vibrant neighbourhoods and engaged communities.

19.02.10 FINAL 3



4.8 Other Implications
None

5. Background Papers

None

Christine Ansell, Head of Landlord Services, 8584

19.02.10 FINAL



Agenda ltem 7

Item No.

Appendices b
2 9,

NORTHAMPTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET REPORT
Report Title Hunsbury Hill Country Park — Public Conveniences
AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC

Cabinet Meeting Date:
Key Decision:

Listed on Forward Plan:
Within Policy:

Policy Document:
Directorate:

Accountable Cabinet Member:

3 March 2010

No

No

Yes

No

Finance & Support

Clir David Perkins

Ward(s) West Hunsbury
1. Purpose
1.1 The purpose of this report is to (a) inform Cabinet of the outcome of discussions

with the Police and other relevant parties,

following the decision on 23 September

2009 by Cabinet to defer consideration of the previous report and (b) to decide
upon the future use of these disused public conveniences.

Recommendation

2.1 To support the original recommendation

made in the report to Cabinet on 23

September 2009 to agree to the disposal of the land designated as public open
space (edged red upon the attached plan shown at Appendix 1) by way of a

lease, on terms referred to in that report.

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/23/02/10



Issues and Choices

3.1

3.1.1

3.1.2

3.1.5

Report Background

At the Cabinet meeting on 23 September 2009 a report was considered which
sought the authority of Cabinet to agree to the disposal of an area of land
designated as public open space by way of the grant of a lease for a term of 9
years, for use as a cafe. There would be provision for either party to break the
agreement after 1 year.

Cabinet resolved that consideration of the original report be deferred so as to
allow further discussions with the Police Crime Prevention Officer to take
place and to allow the proposed lessee and the Friends of Hunsbury Hill
Country Park and the Ironstone Railway Trust to discuss the possibility of the
lessee being involved with the Trust’s café operation.

Enquires have been made of the Crime Prevention Design Manager for
Northamptonshire Police to establish if the Police have any additional
concerns or objections. It is confirmed that their original comment and
recommendations (made at the time of the planning application in 2008) still
stand and no additional concerns or objections are relevant.

Enquires have also been made of the Sector Commander for the Safer
Communities Team in the South West of the town. The Sector Commander is
of the opinion that a café in the proposed location may contribute to increases
in crime and disorder in the area. These concerns focus on the increase in
parking in the adjacent car park that, in his view, will result in a higher risk of
car crime. He has commented that the installation and robust management of
a barrier preventing vehicular access should be seen as a minimum for the car
park ahead of any further development. The Sector Commander considered
that comments about the potentially positive collateral impact of day trade
from the café reducing crime locally should not be discounted, but is not
something he feels informed enough to comment upon. He also commented
that such a business enterprise in this location, when closed, will undoubtedly
attract criminal enterprise and would need substantial crime prevention design
to minimise this threat to the café itself.

Section 3.1.4 of the original report noted that 15 conditions are attached to the
planning permission, relating primarily to the comments made by the Police
and others about managing the risk associated with vandalism in the area.
The conditions focus on the requirement to use suitable materials and design
in the construction process (see Appendix 2).

The prospective lessee, Mr Ingle, has had discussions involving Cabinet
members about his working more closely with the Trust. He has confirmed that
he is not interested in locating a café within the demise of the Ironstone
Railway Trust for a number of reasons. The primary reason stated is that he
has incurred costs in obtaining the planning permission and reaching
provisional agreement for a lease, which has taken him approximately 2 2
years to date. He wishes to maintain his original business plan.

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/23/02/10 2



3.1.7

3.2

3.2.1

3.2.2

3.3

3.3.1

3.3.2

The Northamptonshire Ironstone Railway Trust (NIRT) are 3 years through a
10 year plan that includes its own plans to improve the cafe, located within
their compound. They have been approached with a view to understand their
aspirations for the café. It is understood that improvements are planned for the
existing café but it will only be used on open days for people visiting the site
(see Appendix 3). The Trust has no plans to operate a café on a daily basis.

Had the Trust or prospective lessee been interested in operating within the
area let to the Trust, the Ironstone Railway Trust would have needed to agree
with NBC a lease variation to permit sub-letting of parts of their demise.
Further, there would have to have been a formal planning application for a
café use. This may have resulted in some of the same objections being raised
by local people concerning traffic issues. The same issue of higher risks of car
crime arising from visitors to a café within the Trust area would logically be
relevant.

It has been agreed that in addition to patrons of the café, other members of
the public will be able to use toilet facilities within the café. The prospective
lessee has offered to provide and accommodate an information board about
the park’s history, wildlife, cycling and park walks.

Issues

The vacant property is the subject of continuing antisocial behaviour and
vandalism. The Council continues to spend revenue resources keeping the
premises secure and attempting to prevent access to the interior and to the
roof.

The Council has no proposals to re-open these facilities. In the absence of a
long-term strategy to either reopen them or to use the building for an
alternative purpose, they should rationally be demolished. The appropriate
cost of undertaking this work and making good the land would be
approximately £5,000.

Choices (Options)

The Council could support the disposal of public open space by way of a grant
of a lease to facilitate the conversion of the property into a café use, at no
capital or revenue cost to the Council. This would (after an initial rent free
period) also generate a modest new income for the Council of £7,500pa. The
provision of a café/snack bar and seating area would enhance the facilities in
the park. The risk of crime affecting cars parked in the car park whilst people
use the café has to be acknowledged if this option is pursued. It may be
mitigated by the presence of the café staff during operational hours and a
higher flow of public visitors to the locality.

The Council could decide to reject the proposal to grant a lease. In this event
there would need to be either a decided alternative strategy for reuse of the
building or resources allocated to its demolition.

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/23/02/10 3



4.

Implications (including financial implications)

4.1

Policy

4.1.1 There are none, save for the proposal impacts on the policy relating to the

4.2

421

4.3

4.3.1

4.4
441

4.5

4.6

4.7

5.

release of public open space, to facilitate the grant of the proposed lease.
Resources and Risk

If the Council pursues the recommended course of action there will be no
additional resources required from the Council. If a lease were completed
there would be a small saving in revenue costs from not having to maintain the
property. The letting would generate a new income to the Council. In the event
of the café not being successful or leading to unanticipated problems in the
locality, either party could break the proposed lease at the end of either the
first or third years. In this event the position of the Council would be resource
neutral compared with the current position.

Legal

The legal implications and relevant statutory provisions are detailed elsewhere
in this report.

Equality

There are none. The facility is not presently open to the public and the
proposed conversion to café use would have to be compliant with relevant
building regulations as they relate to disability.

Consultees (Internal and External)

Ward Councillors

Northamptonshire Police - South West Sector Commander
Northamptonshire Police - Crime Prevention Design Manager
How the Proposals deliver Priority Outcomes

None specifically

Other Implications

None specifically

Background Papers

5.1 Planning permission dated 5" June 2008
5.2 Cabinet Report dated 23" September 2009
5.3 Asset Management file — 60364/02

Adrian Daniell, Principal Estates Officer, x8762

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/23/02/10 4



Appendix 1
] NN
\ ANN
\

T
/
/

/
\. y
’.o

Car Park

/
~

|

‘ DWG No. EVS0790/A

Directorate of Finance and Support

\

Tftle: HunsB’ur‘y Hill Park Cafe’

Northampton Borough Council
SCALE: 1:500 DATE: 18th December 2008

ESTATES & ASSET

MANAGEMENT
18th December 2008

PRINTED ON:

DRAWN BY: A Daniell

© Crown Copyright 2006. Reproduced from Ordnance Survey Land-Line data with the permission of the controller of Her Majesty's Stationery

Office. Ordnance Survey and Land-Line are registered trademarks. LA Licence Number 100019655.

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/23/02/10



Appendix 2

Reference Ma: N/2008/410
NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

AFPROVAL OF FULL PLANNING PERMIZSION

Applicant Hame And Addrass

PROFPOSAL, Conversion of public toilet block to café (Class AZ) including paved patio
area to front and erection of extraction flua

LOHCATION: Public Tailets Hunshury Rill Coundry Park Hunsbury Hill Raad
Morthampton

DATE REGISTERED: 04 April 2008
DRAWINGS (No.): Location plan, layout, cross-section and slevation.

NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCGIL HEREBRY GRANTS FULL PLANNING PERMISSION
FOR THE ABCYE DEVELOPMENT FOR THE FOLLOWING REASON:

The proposed developmant i not considersd to have an undue datrimental impact on the
amenity of the nearby residential properties and there would be sufficient off read parking
to cater for the proposed use, The site would be brought back inta use with improved

surveillance togathar with additional measures far crime prevention. The development is
therefore accords with Policies E20 and E40 of the Northampton Locai Plan and advice In
FPE1 (Delivering Sustainable Development) and PPG24 (Planning and Moise] and the SPG

“Planning Qut Crlme."

Subject ta the following conditions:

(1) The devalopment haraby pamiitted shall be begun before the axpiration of thres years fram the
date of this permission.

Reason: Ta comply with Saetian 91 of the Town and Cauntry Planning Act 1990,

(2 Before the developrient hereby permiltted commiences, a scheme shall be submitted (o and
approved in wrifing by the Lagal Planning Authorty which specifies the sources of noise from the
site, whether from fixed plant ar equipment or noise generated wilhin the building, and the
pravisions to be made for its contral. Thea agreed schame shall be implementad prios to tha
deyveloprment coming into use and shall be retained thereafter.

Feasan; In the interests of rasidoeniial amenity to accord with advice in PPG24 Flanning and
Moise.

{3} Motwithstanding the detzils as submitted, before the development haraby penniltad
comimencas, a schema shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Plannirg
Authority that specifies the provisions ta be made for the collection and treatment and dispersal of

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/23/02/10 6



cooking odours and the agreed scheme shall be implemented prior to the development coming
into use and shall be retained thereafter.

Reason: In the interests of residential amenity to accord with advice in PPS23 Poliution Control.

(4) The external doors and windows of the building shall comply with security standards
independently certified as set out in PAS 24-1;1999 “Doors for enhanced security” and BS 7950
“Windows for enhanced security”. Full details shall be first submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved

details.

Reason: In the interests of crime prevention to accord with advice in Policy E40 of the
Northampton Local Plan and SPG Planning out Crime.

(5) The proposed external shutters shall comply with standards set out in LPS1175 SR2. Full
details shall be first submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In the interests of crime prevention to accord with advice in Policy E40 of the
Northampton Local Plan and SPG Planning Out Crime.

(6) The use hereby permitted shall not commence until details of two fixed anti-ram raid bollards to
Secure by Design standard to be erected in front of the main access doors of the building have
been erected. Full details of which shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority and shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In the interests of crime prevention to accord with advice in Policy E40 of the
Northampton Local Plan and SPG Planning out Crime.

(7) The roof tiles shall be replaced with those that meet the requirements of LPS1175 SR1 or an
equal or higher specification. Full details of which shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority and the development shall be implemented in accordance with the

approved details.

Reason: In the interests of crime prevention to accord with advice in Policy E40 of the
Northampton Local Plan and advice in SPG Planning out Crime.

(8) All external wall surfaces of the building shall be coated with an anti-graffitti finish. Details of
which be first submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and
implemented prior to the first use of the café.

Reason: In the interests of crime prevention to accord with advice in Policy E40 of the
Northampton Local Plan and advice in SPG Planning out Crime.

(9) The patio area shall be constructed of a solid concrete base without any form of slabbing or
tiling. Details of which shall be first submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority and implemented prior to the first use of the café.

Reason: In the interests of crime prevention to accord with advice in Policy E40 of the
Northampton Local Plan and SPG Planning Out Crime.

(10) Full details of facilities for the secure parking of bicycles shall be submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of development hereby
permitted, provided prior to the development being first brought into use and retained thereafter.

Reason: To ensure the provision of adequate facilities in accordance with Policy E20 of the
Northampton Local Plan.

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/23/02/10 7



(11) The premises shall be used as a café only and for no other purpose (including any other
purpose in Class A3 of the Schedule to the Town and Country Planning (Use Ciasses) Order 1987
(as amended), or in any provision equivalent to that Class in any statutory instrument revoking and
re-enacting that Order with or without modification). The premises shall not be used for the sale of
hot food for consumption off the premises.

Reason: In the interests of amenity of the surrounding locality in accordance with PPG24 Planning
and Noise and PPS23 Poliution Control.

(12) The premises shall only be open to customers between the hours of 9am and 6pm.
Reason: In the interests of residential amenity to accord with PPG 24 “Planning and Noise.”

(13) Details of the provision for the internal storage of refuse and materials for recycling shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement
of development, implemented prior to the occupation of the building as a café and thereafter

retained.

Reason: In the interests of amenity and to secure a satisfactory standard of development in
accordance with Policy E20 of the Northampton Local Plan.

(14) Full details of the proposed external lighting of the café hereby approved shall be submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of
development, implemented prior to the occupation of the building as a café and thereafter

retained.

Reason: In the interests of amenity and to secure a satisfactory standard of development in
accordance with Policy E20 of the Northampton Local Plan.

(15) The proposed fire exit door at the rear elevation of the building as shown on the submitted
“plan shall be used as emergency exit only and shall be kept shut at any other time.

Reason: In the interests of residential amenity in accordance with PPG24 Planning and Noise.

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/23/02/10 8



Appendix 3

Opening times for the Northamptonshire Ironstone Railway Trust — 2010 opening
times - to be announced

(==

MNorthants Ironstonc Railway Page | of 7

NORTHAMPTONSHIRE
IRONSTONE RAILWAY
TRUST

Hunsbury Hill Road, Camp Hill, Northampton NiNg
oUW, Tel: 01604 702031

Trust Directors: Mr lan Cave. Chairman. Mr Alan Sorkin. Treasurer. Mr
David Windhaber. Company Sec. Mr Kewin Smith. Mr. Roger Whiffin.
Mr. Skmon Tasker.

... 2009 season starts on Good Friday from 10am... NIRT - the family friendly ,

‘ - man charities aid foundation

| NIRT 2009 OPENING TIMES

Month Days open Time Event
|April Easter 2009 10-13 10am — 5pm [Easter Egg Hunt |Adult £
£ 10.01
ay Bank Holiday 3-4 10am - 5pm Adult £ 3.
10.0C
Spring Bank Holiday 24-125 10am - 5pm Adult £ 3.
10.00
June 7 10am — 5pm
ity 5 10am — S5pm
st 2 10am — 5pm
ﬁﬂ: 29 - 31 10am — 5pm [Treasure Hunt
September 12-13 10am — 5pm _|Heritage Open
October 30 - 31 5,30pm — 9pm_|Halloween
December 12-13/19-20/24] 1lam -

To book far evants pleaze arall Nirt or Call e Holline 07790-1563.114.

el sl ydaled: ML DY

hitpewww . nirkcouk! 1702009

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/23/02/10 9



Agenda Iltem 8

Item No.
Appendices =q (M p
1 L)
NORTHAMPTON
BOROUGH COUNCIL
CABINET REPORT
Report Title Countywide Scrutiny Arrangements
AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC

Cabinet Meeting Date:

Key Decision:

Listed on Forward Plan:
Within Policy:

Policy Document:

Directorate:

Accountable Cabinet Member:

Ward(s)

3 March 2010

NO

YES

YES

YES

Chief Executive
Councillor Brian Hoare

All

1. Purpose

1.1

To present for adoption the final Terms of Reference and Procedure Rules for

the Northamptonshire Overview and Scrutiny Board, a copy of which is attached

at Appendix A.

1.2 All member organisations will consider the Terms of Reference and Procedural
Rules. Details of all participating organisations are listed in Section 2 of the
Terms of Reference. As soon as the Terms of Reference and Procedural Rules
have been adopted by all member organisations, the Board can be formally
constituted and take on its role.

2. Recommendations

2.1 To recommend to Council the adoption of the Terms of Reference and
Procedural Rules governing involvement in countywide overview and scrutiny

arrangements.

2.2 To recommend that Council nominates Northampton Borough Council’s
representatives onto the Board.

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/23/02/10



3. Issues and Choices

3.1 Report Background

3.1.1 The process to produce Terms of Reference has been led by a five-member
Countywide Constitution Working Group, which has proved to be a useful
forum, and provides much encouragement for cross-organisation scrutiny
work in the future.

3.1.2 Councillor Jamie Lane was a member of this Working Group and the Council’s
Scrutiny Officer was also involved in the production of the draft Terms of
Reference.

3.1.3 The Northamptonshire Overview and Scrutiny Board approved the Terms of
Reference at its meeting of 28" January 2010 and requested that they be
considered by all the member organisations.

3.1.4 The Northamptonshire Overview and Scrutiny Board derives any authority it
has from the member organisations, therefore there is a need for each
member organisation to approve the Terms of Reference. It should be noted
that authority would come from various areas of the member organisations,
which are all set up in different ways. The powers to require attendance are
included in the Terms of Reference. There is a clear commitment to avoid the
use of this power, wherever possible, as this is not the spirit in which the
Board was set up.

3.1.5 Once the Northamptonshire Overview and Scrutiny Board has been
established, its meetings will be held in public and usual regulations around
public meetings will be followed.

3.1.6 It is emphasised that the Northamptonshire Overview and Scrutiny Board will
not replace any existing Overview and Scrutiny Committees within the county
but will enable cross county working on issues of countywide importance.
Section 21 of the Local Government Act 2000 requires the establishment of
one or more Overview and Scrutiny Committees for the adoption of executive
arrangements for individual Councils.

3.1.7 The focus of the Northamptonshire Overview and Scrutiny Board will be
broad. An important feature will be to hold the Public Service Board to
account. The Public Service Board comprises Leaders and Deputy Leaders of
the member authorities and others.

3.1.8 The Northamptonshire Overview and Scrutiny Board is currently carrying out a
Review into drug rehabilitation.

3.2 Issues

3.2.1 This process is an important step towards setting up the Northamptonshire
Overview and Scrutiny Board as an established body with powers and

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/23/02/10 2



3.3

3.3.1

responsibilities. The Terms of Reference and Procedural Rules are therefore
recommended for approval.

Choices (Options)

There are three options for consideration: -

3.3.1.1To approve the Terms of Reference for the Northamptonshire Overview and

Scrutiny Board, as recommended at paragraph 2.1.

3.3.1.2To agree not to sign up to the Terms of Reference, which would have

implications on the establishment of the Northamptonshire Overview and
Scrutiny Board.

3.3.1.3To recommend amendments to the Terms of Reference for the

Northamptonshire Overview and Scrutiny Board. Any suggested
recommendations would have to be considered by the Northamptonshire
Overview and Scrutiny Board.

4, Implications (including financial implications)

4.1 Policy

4.1.1 The Northamptonshire Overview and Scrutiny Board will not have an impact
upon the work of Northampton Borough Council’'s Overview and Scrutiny
function. The work of Overview and Scrutiny at Northampton Borough Council
plays a major part in the development of the Council’'s policy framework
through its work programme. The structure and remit of the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee and Scrutiny Panels is important in supporting the delivery
of the Council’s corporate objectives.

4.2 Resources and Risk

4.2.1 Travelling and other expenses will be incurred by Members and Officers
attending meetings of the Northamptonshire Overview and Scrutiny Board.

4.2.2 All other costs will be contained from within existing budgets.

4.2.3 Time commitments will be also placed on Members and Officers attending
meetings of the Northamptonshire Overview and Scrutiny Board, which are
currently set at a minimum of four times per year.

4.2.4 The report is asking the Council to approve the Terms of Reference and
Procedural Rules for the Northamptonshire Overview and Scrutiny Board and
it is not required to make a financial contribution to these arrangements.

4.3 Legal

4.3.1 The legal implications to the establishment of the Northamptonshire Overview

and Scrutiny Board are detailed in paragraphs 3.1.3 and 3.1.4.

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/23/02/10 3



4.4

441

Equality

Effective countywide scrutiny should, amongst other things, contribute to
improved equality and diversity issues.

4.5 Consultees (Internal and External)

4.5.1

452

453

454

455

4.6

The Head of Legal and democratic Services, Corby Borough Council, was
consulted and provided comment on each version of the draft Terms of
Reference for the Northamptonshire Overview and Scrutiny Board.

Councillor Jamie Lane and the Council’s Scrutiny Officer were part of the
Working Group that was set up to produce draft Terms of Reference and
Procedural Rules for the Northamptonshire Overview and Scrutiny Board.

Councillor John Yates, Chair, Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee,
and Councillor Jamie Lane, Chair, Overview and Scrutiny Committee 3, are
the members of the Northamptonshire Overview and Scrutiny Board.

The Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee, at its meeting on
29™ September 2009, received a copy of the draft Terms of Reference and
Procedural Rules for the Northamptonshire Overview and Scrutiny Board.

The Borough Solicitor has been consulted upon the Terms of Reference and
Procedural Rules for the Northamptonshire Overview and Scrutiny Board.

How the Proposals deliver Priority Outcomes

4.6.1 The Northamptonshire Overview and Scrutiny Board is an excellent example of

joint working.

4.7 Other Implications

4.71

5.

None.

Background Papers

5.1

5.2

Minutes of the meeting of Northamptonshire Overview and Scrutiny Board —
28" January 2010.

Minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee-
29 September 2009.

Report Author: Tracy Tiff, Scrutiny Officer, extension 7408

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/23/02/10 4



CABINET MEETING 03.03.2010
ITEM 08
APPENDIX 1 (UPDATED)

Version 11 January 2010

Northamptonshire Overview & Scrutiny Board

Terms of Reference and Procedure Rules

1.

Role

The Northamptonshire Overview & Scrutiny Board (referred to in the remainder
of this document as “the Scrutiny Board”) will carry out the following functions:

a) Holding to Account
To maintain an overview of the business conducted by the Public Service
Board and hold it to account for its actions, including the
recommendations it makes to partner organisations.

b) Policy Development and Review
To scrutinise and review issues affecting Northamptonshire, making
recommendations to the Public Service Board and other bodies as
appropriate. Scrutiny should focus on issues that affect the county as a
whole, or the area of more than one district or borough council, and that
relate to the work of more than one partner organisation.

c) Communication and Co-operation
To act as a forum for discussing scrutiny activity and responsibilities
across Northamptonshire in order to encourage co-operation and
co-ordination between different organisations to maximise resources.

d) Regional Scrutiny
To provide a Northamptonshire voice in the operation of regional scrutiny.

Membership

The membership of the Scrutiny Board will consist of 2 members appointed by
each of the following organisations (referred to as the “member organisations”):

Corby Borough Council

Daventry District Council

East Northamptonshire Council
Kettering Borough Council
Northampton Borough Council
Northamptonshire County Council
NHS Northamptonshire

South Northamptonshire Council
Borough Council of Wellingborough



Scrutiny Board members will be drawn from an Overview & Scrutiny
Committee, or appropriate equivalent body, of their respective member
organisation.

Each of the member organisations will select their 2 Scrutiny Board members
according to their own appropriate procedures.

If a Scrutiny Board member is unable to attend a Scrutiny Board meeting a
named member from an Overview & Scrutiny Committee, or appropriate
equivalent body, of their respective member organisation may substitute
for them.

It is the responsibility of any Scrutiny Board member due to be substituted at a
meeting to ensure that their substitute is briefed on the business to be
conducted at that meeting.

Advising Officer

The Northamptonshire Partnership Strategic Planning & Policy Manager will
carry out the role and functions of an Advising Officer for the Scrutiny Board. All
references to “the Advising Officer” in the remainder of this document refer to
the Strategic Planning & Policy Manager.

Meetings

The Scrutiny Board will meet at least four times per year following meetings of
the Northamptonshire Public Service Board (PSB).

The Advising Officer may be requested to call additional meetings by the Chair
of the Board, or by Board members representing at least 6 of the member
organisations if they have already made a request to the Chair to call a meeting
that has been refused.

Scrutiny Board meetings will normally start at 6.00pm.
The Scrutiny Board will determine the locations of its meetings.

Quorum

A meeting of the Scrutiny Board will be quorate when members representing at
least half of the member organisations are present.

During any meeting if the Chair counts the number of members present and
declares that there is not a quorum present then the meeting will adjourn
immediately. Remaining business will be considered at a time and date fixed by
the Chair. If the Chair does not fix a date the remaining business will be
considered at the next ordinary meeting.

Chair of the Scrutiny Board

The Chair and Vice Chair of the Scrutiny Board will be agreed annually by the
Board at the first Board meeting of the municipal year, when nominations from
the membership will be taken.



The positions of Chair and Vice Chair of the Board will always be held by
members representing different member organisations.

If the position of Chair or Vice Chair becomes vacant during the course of the
municipal year a new Chair or Vice Chair will be appointed at the next Board
meeting to serve for the remainder of the municipal year in progress.

Work Programme

The Scrutiny Board will agree a rolling work programme covering a three-year
period. The work programme will be reviewed on an annual basis by the Board,
following the appointment of the Chair and Vice Chair.

The work programme should support the delivery of the Scrutiny Board
functions set out in paragraph 1 above.

The work programme may be informed by:

a) The Public Service Board Forward Plan

b) Member organisations’ Forwards Plans or equivalent

c) Member organisations’ scrutiny work programmes or equivalent

d) The East Midlands Regional Select Committee’s work programme, or

equivalent

e) Potential subjects for scrutiny brought to the attention of the Board by:
i) The Public Service Board
i) The Chief Executives Group
iii) Member organisations’ Overview & Scrutiny functions or equivalent
iv) Members of the public or representatives of community groups
v) Partner organisations including the voluntary and business sectors
vi) Any other county, regional or national body
vii) Previously-completed scrutiny work.

Meeting Agendas

The agenda for meetings of the Scrutiny Board will be agreed by the Chair and
Vice Chair, based on the work programme.

Employees, Officers and Members Giving Account

In carrying out its functions, the Scrutiny Board may request the attendance of
any employee, officer or member from the member organisations and, if that
request is declined, require any portfolio holder / lead member, the head of paid
service, or any member of the senior management team from these
organisations to attend before it to explain any matter for which they would be
accountable, and it is the duty of those persons to attend if so required.

Where any individual is required to attend a Scrutiny Board meeting under this
provision, the Chair of the Board will inform the Advising Officer. The Advising



10.

1.

Officer shall inform the individual in writing, giving at least 10 working days
notice of the meeting at which he/she is required to attend. The notice will state
the nature of the item on which he/she is required to attend to give account and
whether any papers are required to be produced for the Board. Where the
account to be given to the Board will require the production of a report, then the
individual concerned will be given sufficient notice to allow for preparation of
that documentation.

Where, in exceptional circumstances, the individual is unable to attend on the
required date, the Board shall in consultation with them arrange an alternative
date for attendance to take place as soon as possible following the original
request.

Recommendations and Reports from the Scrutiny Board

Recommendations by the Scrutiny Board for actions by partner organisations
will be set out in a formal report. The report will be submitted to the relevant
partner organisation(s).

Recommendations by the Scrutiny Board that member organisations’ Overview
& Scrutiny functions consider carrying out scrutiny work will be set out in a
formal report. The report will be submitted to the relevant Overview & Scrutiny
committee, or appropriate equivalent body, of the member organisation(s)
concerned.

All recommendations by the Scrutiny Board must be evidence-based.

The Scrutiny Board will aim to agree all recommendations and reports by
consensus. If the Scrutiny Board cannot agree on a single final report than a
minority report may be submitted with the majority report.

Reports by the Scrutiny Board setting out recommendations for actions by
partner organisations will specify when the Scrutiny Board will review the
implementation of its recommendations.

Ensuring that Scrutiny Board Reports are Considered

Reports from the Scrutiny Board to the Public Service Board will be considered
by the Public Service Board at its next meeting following the agreement of the
report by the Scrutiny Board in accordance with the Partnership Protocol.

Reports from the Scrutiny Board to partner organisations will be considered by
the appropriate body within two months of the date on which the partner
organisation received the report.

Once it has considered a report from the Scrutiny Board the Partnership
Board will:

a) produce a report setting out its response to the recommendations from the
Scrutiny Board to be submitted to the next following Scrutiny
Board meeting;

b) instruct the Chair of the Public Service Board to write to relevant partners
to request that any recommendations that are supported by the Public
Service Board are implemented.



12.

13.

c) instruct the Chair of the Public Service Board to request that relevant
partners provide a report to the Scrutiny Board on the implementation of
recommendations or the reasons why implementation has not occurred in
accordance with the timescale for reviewing the implementation of
recommendations specified in the report by the Scrutiny Board.

Once it has considered a report from the Scrutiny Board a partner
organisation will:

a) produce a report setting out its response to the recommendations from the
Scrutiny Board to be submitted to the next following Scrutiny
Board meeting;

b) provide a report to the Scrutiny Board on the implementation of
recommendations or the reasons why implementation has not occurred in
accordance with the timescale for reviewing the implementation of
recommendations specified in the report by the Scrutiny Board.

Task and Finish Groups

The Scrutiny Board may set up sub groups (referred to as Task & Finish
Groups) to carry out scrutiny reviews on behalf of the Board. The Scrutiny
Board will agree a brief for the work that is required from any sub group. A sub
group will be wound up once its assigned task has been completed
satisfactorily and it has reported back to the Scrutiny Board.

Scrutiny Board members may sit on sub groups. Other members of member
organisations may also be approached to sit on them.

Representatives from the local community may be co-opted to sit on sub
groups, where it would be useful and appropriate to do so. Proposals to co-opt
community representatives will normally be agreed by the Scrutiny Board. In
the event that it is impractical for a decision on a proposed co-option to be
delayed until the next available Scrutiny Board meeting then the proposal may
be agreed by the Chair and Vice Chair of the Scrutiny Board.

The Scrutiny Board may specify the chair of a sub group when it is established
or may leave a group to select its own chair.

The Scrutiny Board will consider requests from member organisations for it to
nominate a Scrutiny Board member to serve on a task and finish group to be
formed by member organisations’ Overview & Scrutiny functions.

Review and revision of the Terms of Reference and Procedure Rules

Any Scrutiny Board member or the Scrutiny Board as a whole may request the
Advising Officer to consider any proposed changes to the Terms of Reference
and Procedure Rules. The Advising Officer may also make proposals for
changes.

The Scrutiny Board will review its operation and effectiveness, including the
need to propose changes to its terms and reference and procedure rules, on an
annual basis at the final Scrutiny Board meeting of each municipal year.



All proposed changes to the Terms of Reference and Procedure Rules of the
Scrutiny Board shall be considered by the Advising Officer before being
presented to the appropriate body for approval.



Northamptonshire Overview & Scrutiny Board

Access to Information Procedure Rules

a)

b)

d)

Right to Attend Meetings

Members of the public may attend all Board meetings subject only to the
exceptions in these rules.

Notices of Meeting

Member organisations will give at least five working days notice of any Board
meeting by posting details of the meeting at their respective corporate
headquarters.

Access to Agenda and Reports Before the Meeting

Member organisations will make copies of the agenda and reports open to the
public available for inspection at the designated office at least five working days
before the meeting. If an item is added to the agenda later, the revised agenda
and any report relating to the item will be open for inspection from the time the
item is added to the agenda.

Access to Minutes Etc After Meeting

Member organisations will make available copies of the following for six years
after a meeting:

= the minutes of the meeting or records of decisions taken, together with
reasons, excluding any part of the minutes of proceedings when the meeting
was not open to the public or which disclose exempt or confidential
information;

» a summary of any proceedings not open to the public where the minutes
open to inspection would not provide a reasonably fair and coherent record;

» the agenda for the meeting; and
= reports relating to items when the meeting was open to the public.

Background Papers

The Advising Officer will set out in every report a list of those documents (called
background papers) relating to the subject matter of the report which in his/her
opinion:

» disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the
report is based; and

» which have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report but
does not include published works or those which disclose exempt or
confidential information (as defined in these rules) - and in respect of Cabinet
reports, the advice of a political advisor.



g)

h)

The member organisations will make available for public inspection for four
years after the date of the meeting one copy of each of the documents on the
list of background papers.

Confidential Information - Exclusion of Access by the Public to Meetings

The public must be excluded from meetings whenever it is likely in view of the
nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings that
confidential information would be disclosed.

Exempt information — discretion to exclude public

The public may be excluded from meetings whenever it is likely in view of the
nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings that
exempt information would be disclosed.

Where the meeting will determine any person’s civil rights or obligations, or
adversely affect their possessions, Article 6 of the Human Rights Act 1998
establishes a presumption that the meeting will be held in public unless a
private hearing is necessary for one of the reasons specified in Article 6.

Meaning of confidential information

Confidential information means information given to a member organisation by
a Government Department on terms which forbid its public disclosure or
information which cannot be publicly disclosed by Court Order.

Meaning of exempt information

Exempt information means information falling within the following 7 categories
(subject to any qualification):

General qualifications:

(i) Information falling within any of the paragraphs 1-7 in the table below is not
exempt information if it relates to proposed development for which the local
planning authority may grant itself planning permission pursuant to regulation 3
of the Town and Country Planning General Regulations 1992.

(b) Information which falls within any of the paragraphs 1-7 below and which is
not prevented from being exempt by virtue of the general qualification (a) above
or the qualification to category 3 below is exempt information if and so long, as
in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

Category Qualifications and Interpretation

1. Information relating to any individual

2. Information which is likely to reveal the
identify of an individual




3. Information relating to the financial or
business affairs of any particular person
(including the organisation holding that
information).

Information falling within this
paragraph is not exempt
information if it is required to be
registered under the:

(a) Companies Act 1985;

(b) Friendly Societies Act 1974;
(c) Friendly Societies Act 1992;
(d) Industrial and Provident
Societies Acts 1965 — 1978;

(e) Building Societies Act 1986;
or

(f) Charities Act 1993

“organisation” means any
Council, its committees and sub-
committees, and any other
member agency.

“financial or business affairs”
includes contemplated, as well as
past or current activities.

4. Information
consultations  or
contemplated consultations or
negotiations, in connection with any
labour relations matter arising between
the organisation or a Minister of the
Crown and employees of, or officer-
holders under the authority.

relating to any
negotiations,  or

“organisation” means any
Council, its committees and sub-
committees, and any other
member agency.

‘employee” means a person
employed under a contract of
service.

‘labour relations matter” is as
specified in paragraphs (a) to (g)
of section 218(1) of the Trade
Union and Labour Relations
(Consolidation) Act 1992, i.e.
matters which may be the subject
of a trade dispute, within the
meaning of that Act. This
provision shall relate to “office

holders® as they apply to
employees.

5. Information in respect of which a claim

to legal professional privilege could be

maintained in legal proceedings.

6. Information which reveals that the | “organisation” means any

organisation proposes:

(a) to give under any enactment a notice
under or by virtue of which requirements
are imposed on a person; or

Council, its committees and sub-
committees, and any other
member agency.




)

(b) to make an order or direction under
any enactment.

7. Information relating to any action taken
or to be taken in connection with the
prevention, investigation or prosecution of
crime.

Exclusion of Access by the Public to Reports

If the Advising Officer thinks fit, access by the public may be excluded from
reports which in his/her opinion relate to items during which, in accordance with
rules (f)-(g) above, the meeting is likely not to be open to the public. Such
reports will be marked “Not for publication” together with the category of
information likely to be disclosed.

10



Agenda ltem 9

Item No.
Appendices =q (M p
2 X9
NORTHAMPTON
BOROUGH COUNCIL
CABINET REPORT
Report Title Delapre Abbey Stable Block
AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC
Cabinet Meeting Date: 3 March 2010
Key Decision: NO
Listed on Forward Plan: YES
Within Policy: YES
Policy Document: NO
Directorate: Finance & Support
Accountable Cabinet Member: Councillor David Perkins
Ward(s) Delapre
1. Purpose

1.1 The purpose of this report is to advise members that included in the heads of
terms to grant the Friends of Delapre Abbey (FODA) a new five-year lease of the
above is reference to a side letter. This proposes a concessionary rent below that
outlined in the lease, if certain specified conditions are and continue to be met.

1.2 As any lettings below market value require Cabinet approval, Members are being
asked to approve this subject to a completion of the lease and compliance with
the required conditions.

2. Recommendations

2.1 That Cabinet agree in principle the proposed grant of a lease of the Stable Block
at Delapre Abbey, at a concessionary rent, to FODA provided that certain
conditions are met and continue to be complied with by FoDA.

2.2 That Cabinet delegates to the Borough Solicitor in consultation with the Chief
Executive and the Director of Finance & Support judgement of whether the
conditions set out by the Council have been satisfied.

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/25/02/10 1



3. Issues and Choices

3.1 Report Background

3.1.1

3.1.2

3.1.5

3.1.6

The Friends of Delapre Abbey are a registered charity. Their formal objects
set out in their present Constitution are “the restoration and preservation of
Delapre Abbey, comprising the buildings, gardens and grounds, for the use of
the local and wider community”. A copy of FODA’s most recently published
accounts (relating to the year ended 31 March 2009) are attached to this
report at Appendix 2.

In 2004 FoDA were granted a Tenancy At Will to occupy three ground floor
rooms at the above, for the purposes of establishing an administrative office
and charitable base. This was subject to an initial payment of £1,700 per
annum. Over the years FODA have extended their occupation in the building to
additional first floor areas, which were neither consented to nor included in any
agreement.

In an attempt to address the situation negotiations were opened with FoDA to
agree terms for a new lease. Unfortunately, due to concerns about FoDA'’s
governance and activities, an expression of no confidence was sent to FoDA’s
committee by some of its members. This Council then advised FoDA that it
would not be possible for the Council to continue negotiations or enter into a
lease, until the various issues raised by members of that organisation had
been satisfactorily resolved.

As there appeared to remain unresolved matters concerning the governance
of the organisation, FODA were further advised in a letter from the Council
dated 16™ December 2009 of the Council’s continuing concerns. This letter
confirmed that the Council would continue to work with FODA, but that in order
to take the matter forward and enable continued support it would be necessary
for them to: -

(a) Comply with the various requirements and conditions specified by the
Council in the letter to FoDA before any lease would be granted.

(b) That FoDA should vacate immediately those areas of the first floor for
which no consent has been granted or agreement made.

(c) Enter into negotiations and agree the heads of terms which have been
proposed for the grant of a new lease.

To acknowledge the positive work carried out by FODA and the benefits that
the Council and FoDA believe will accrue from their activities in the future, the
heads of terms have included reference to a side letter. This side letter
proposes a concessionary rent below that specified in the lease itself,
provided certain important conditions are and continue to be met.

A copy of the draft side letter is attached in Appendix 1. This sets out the
requirements of the Council in order for FODA to enjoy a concessionary rental
basis.

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/25/02/10 2



3.2 Issues

3.2.1

3.2.2

FoDA need to demonstrate that they have met the pre conditions required for
the Borough Council to grant them a lease, agree specific terms for that lease
and complete the same within a timescale acceptable to the Council.

Officers can deal with the grant of a lease of less than 21 years. However, the
Borough Council’s policy, agreed in March 2007, requires that Cabinet must
approve any letting at less than full market value. There is an established
criterion for exceptional disposal of Council property for non-commercial use
at less than full market value. One important element of the criteria is that the
discount from full market value should usually lever in external investment or
financial benefit in kind for the Council, in excess of the value of the rental
discount. If the requirements set out in numbered paragraphs 2 and 4 of the
draft side letter at Appendix 1 are met, then this criteria would be likely to be
satisfied. Ultimately, discretion is reserved to Cabinet on whether or not it is
willing to agree to the grant of concessionary terms.

3.3 Choices (Options)

3.3.1

3.3.2

3.3.3

That Cabinet resolves that any grant of a lease to FODA should only be at full
market value and that no rent concession, as proposed, is appropriate.

That Cabinet supports the grant of a lease to FODA at a concessionary rental
as proposed, but that it should not be subject to any specific conditions. This
would not provide the Council with any mechanism to ensure that required
ongoing outcomes from agreeing the concession were realised.

That Cabinet supports the grant of a lease to FODA at a concessionary rental,
subject to them complying with the terms and conditions set out in a side
letter. This would ensure that the Council had an ongoing means of ensuring
that the benefits promised would continue to be realised in practice.

4. Implications (including financial implications)

4.1 Policy

411

None.

4.2 Resources and Risk

4.21

The granting of a lease on a concessionary rental basis would result in the
loss of potential revenue to the Borough Council of £6,850 per annum.

4.3 Legal

4.3.1

None

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/25/02/10 3



4.4 Equality
4.4.1 None
4.5 Consultees (Internal and External)
The Friends of Delapre Abbey
Legal Services
The Director of Environment and Culture.
Portfolio Holder for Finance & Assets
4.6 How the Proposals deliver Priority Outcomes
4.6.1 Although this proposal links to several of the council’s priority outcomes it
primarily supports priority 4 by demonstrating the Authorities willingness to
develop partnership and community engagement.

4.7 Other Implications

4.7.1 None

5. Background Papers

5.1 Asset Management files

David Fletcher, Principal Estates Officer, Ext 8763

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/25/02/10 4



Borough Solicitor
Francis Fernandes
LLM; LLB; MBA; LARTPI

Legal Services

The Guildhall

St. Giles Square
Northampton NN1 1DE

Tel: (01604) 837837
Fax: (01604) 838554
Minicom: (01604) 838970
DX 703139 Northampton 6

The Chairman Our Ref: DM/glp/DLE005183

Delapre Abbey Contact: Diana Marten

Northampton Direct Line 01604 837596
E-mail: dmarten@northampton.gov.uk
Date: [ ]February 2010

Dear Sirs

LEASE OF GROUND FLOOR AND FIRST FLOOR ROOMS

CENTRAL STABLE BOCK DELAPRE ABBEY

Northampton Borough Council (“NBC”) agree that for so long as the following conditions
(“Conditions”) are satisfied then notwithstanding the rent stated in the lease referred to
above (£10,500.00 pa) a refund of part of that rent of £5,350.00 pa will be paid to you.
The rent must be paid in full and on time each month and then if the Conditions remain
satisfied a one-twelfth of the refund will be set of against the next monthly instalment
when it is due.

The Conditions are that at all times:

1 That your constitution is generally satisfactory in NBC’s reasonable opinion and
makes detailed provision for:

a) the conduct of, attendance at, and frequency of meetings
b) the free and fair election of officers
c) members voting rights
d) admittance criteria and grounds for suspension or ejection of members
e) maintenance of audited accounts and the compliance with good and
transparent accounting practices
2 That you apply all profits after the deduction of reasonable overheads agreed

with NBC to the enhancement and preservation of Delapre Abbey and/or its
grounds. You will vigorously pursue a programme of fund-raising activities
suitable for the style and size of your organisation. Proper accounting practices
will be used in managing this programme and a separate dedicated bank
account will be maintained. All will be open to inspection by NBC when
requested.

DLE005183/35016




3 The programme of fund-raising events to be agreed in advance of publication on
your website and/or generally with the Events Team of NBC and reviewed by
both parties on a monthly basis. The rules laid down by the Events Team for the
holding of events must be adhered to strictly at all times.

4 That you provide an agreed level of assistance to NBC in terms of volunteer work
(and the obtaining of grant assistance if appropriate) to undertake an annual
programme of works, such works to include maintenance of public lavatories,
pathways etc as before. The programme detailing works to be undertaken will
be agreed on the commencement of the lease and reviewed during each year on
a monthly basis by NBC. These works must represent a value in monetary terms
of at least the amount by which the rent is refunded under the terms of the first
paragraph of this letter.

5. That the obligations of the Tenant under the lease are fulfilled generally, and in
full, and all restrictions observed.

Yours faithfully

Diana Marten
Principal Lawyer
Legal Services

DLE005183/35016 Page 2



The Friends of Delapre Abbey

Trustees Annual Report

For the year ended 31* March 2009

Charity registration number: 1113979

Principle Address: The Stable Block
Delapre Abbey
London Road
Far Cotton

Northampton
NN4 8AN

Chairman: Mr G Walker



Structure, governance and management

The charity is governed by the governing document, which is the constitution adopted
on 12 September 2001 (amended, 2005, 2009), when the charity was constituted as a
charitable unincorporated association. Trustees, who are also known as Executive
Committee Members are elected at the AGM. The Executive Committee may also
co-opt members to the committee during the year.

Obijectives and activities

The charity’s objects (“the objects”) are the restoration and preservation of Delapre
Abbey, comprising the buildings, gardens, woodlands, parklands, and lakeside for the
use of the local and wider community.

A wide variety of activities have been undertaken during the period in relation to the
charity’s objects.

FoDA Aims & Objectives

We are a community organisation, with the full support of both Northampton
Borough Council and Northamptonshire County Council, dedicated to securing the
future of Northampton’s Delapre Abbey, to enable our community now and for
generations to come to enjoy the heritage and facilities of this wonderful building and
its grounds.

FoDA aims to work with NBC during the transference of Delapre Abbey to trust
status. We continue to raise the profile of the Abbey and public awareness of the

historical and environmental importance of the Abbey and its grounds.

Achievements and performance

Awards
e East Midlands in Bloom — Silver Gilt Award

Visitors
Delapre Abbey’s grounds, gardens, lakeside, Tea Rooms and events attract around
75,000 visitors a year.

FoDA Community Events
We held 17 days of events for the local community and the wider audience that have
helped to raised over £10,000 for the charity:

St Georges family fun day

Easter Egg hunt

3 day Beer Festival

Family show Weekend

3 day Heritage Weekend

Children’s Halloween Trick or Treat in the Walled Garden
Christmas Craft Fair

Garden and Parkland guided tours



Tea Rooms

With the help of 40 volunteers, ranging from 14 years (with parental supervision
onsite) to 80 years old, the Tea Rooms serve up to 1000 visitors a week, providing a
meeting place for the local community in a beautiful setting.

Refurbishment and Renovation fund
Through monies raised for our Refurbishment and Renovation fund we have achieved:

Victorian Greenhouse Renovations

Refurbishment of the Stable Block Foyer

Landscape design and planting around the Lady and Fish Statue
Maintenance and keeping open public toilets on site

The monies raised from previous events enable funding for future events.

We received a grant from the WNDC Stronger Communities Fund towards our
outdoor education project for children and young people. This money has enabled us
to purchase equipment necessary to carry out Forest School activities in partnership
with Everdon Outdoor Centre in Daventry and the Preschool Learning Alliance.
Barclaycard Volunteers have also made this project possible by providing the people
power and resources to clear and make a pathway through a nearby woodland where
the Forest School activities take place. Three pilot Forest School workshops have
taken place with local schools, giving 90 children a unique outdoor experience.

Partnerships

Over the past 12 months we have developed new relationships with WNDC and
Everdon Outdoor Centre, and continued to develop a strong relationship with local
businesses.

Barclaycard

Every month up to 26 employees contribute their time and resources, in addition to
helping us with the Rookery pathway for Forest Schools; they also contribute
invaluable help with:

Victorian Greenhouse renovations
Gardening

Clearing the driveways

Litter picking

Clearing ponds and water features

Community Support
We have helped the following community groups by providing resources and
facilities for their events at the Abbey:

e 6 family events in the Walled Garden

e Events and functions for community groups including Northampton’s Cultural
Literary Festival, A Teddy Bear’s picnic in the Walled Garden, Picnics by the
lakeside and on the south lawn, yoga in the walled garden. Providing meeting
room facilities and lunches.



Community engagement

Volunteers — We rely on our volunteer help to carry out our activities and events.
We are fortunate to have such a reliable and hard working team that help to make
things happen in our Tea Rooms, gardens, at our events and behind the scenes in the
offices. We have had 250 volunteers working for us this year. Volunteer time
contributed to FoDA this year is approximately 62,500 hours.

Financial Review

The Executive Committee now maintains a reserve, since the charity has two full-time
employees. The trustees consider that in the short term they would have sufficient
resources to be able to continue the current activities of the charity. It would
obviously be necessary in the long term to consider how funding would be replaced or
activities changed.

There are no funds in deficit.



SLBETTY S

AL BNN
SHUSUCITRUBLLION
uoyhumpion
abpuasussnd) ¢
ISNOH SUBSHY
SISSIADY KB passusy)
SJERIRIY DRILST PRIRL)
ybnosegssg Asigany

ASGUY ool 1o spusly

HUOT YRR IE
POPUY 1903 DY 04 STUSUITINIS SN0y poyiphean
PUT SOaIENIL o) 10 13588y

ALTERTIN ALTYVHS GINEIsIDEy




M

gr el d

abey

SSRARDY {EDURUL JO JURIZIRIS PRfiEi)
SIUQLIRIRIG (BOURLY BUY () SHI0N

I9RYS anuRRy

SSRIATY JEIDUEUL JO JUSUIRELS

nodey steurtexy juspuadepuy

SRPSNLY 8UL 10 voday

SO0T WIS TE POpUT 188 BN
ES R e N S W TR ST AR TR B R R LS T e T

ARGGY SHIERG O SERg



o 11°6E poubisas
80°07°g pajuodde
SO°NT'S pauodde

R0°07 0 papacdde -

60°5'T¢ paubisy

4

G0°0T°9 pajuodde -

60°¢ 1€ paubisa

t

R0°01T°0 papscdds -

SO 0T°G pawdjodde
§0°01 9 popuodde
80'01°9 paguindde

¢

26°01°9 pepiedds -

Q0T 0 paubisy

¢

GO G paubea: -

QUE (I paublss:

3

R06'0¢ poulisal -

S'P1T paubsad

(07 87 paubisal

807010 paubat

Q07019 poubisal -

SO'OT 0 paudisal

¢

«

T abeg

4834 PNN

DHSUOWHURLON
uoachueyLIoN

afpugsusend) /

SENOK SUBSILY

SIBSIADY Y81 PRIRMEYD
SIIDUNCOTRY BRRISD PRISHELD
ubnosongsag Ao

SRURUENT wspuadapuy

uoyBuung Alesn
a0 AUR(
sabpal{ gjomN

sofpard pieydry

SUOADIS ApRiL
GeNO pireg
RN PIRLRY

RO IBUURY
sEtLiRg 1978
SUBLIUES) Ssuief
LOLINED ASUpneD
WBYRIT DIAE(
ARG (0

LIS UBRi0(

ybnyzg uoy
P04 U

UHUS Ajies

YHWS day
yEnuzd e
UOSULS LIAOY
Heiiedg (Y

UB 3S i

DID. BHRYM
lx—,‘;% ;'\]‘\ ‘..Jefii:,,ef}
SDVIBAIYL

AYE PN

QausuduIBYLoN

LOCHUBLHON

Hlarelag Q=B

DEGY HOPUST

A2y udrjRd Hoolg 2jaeIs Byl
ssasppe eddalig

BLGETTY
sogumy Spegy possysiiay
SITVLIU FATVRLSINIHGY GNY IGNIHI4RY

GONT YMER W DBNSST sapueyn Ag Bu pO(‘”)‘({ pe Bugunoy, (430%)

TODRIE  POpURWILLIDIEY SO JuBW
DIDUS  JEBA Bl 4y

=S

3yt 4o suoliaud 2y peldope BARY
AMi2Un S JO SIUSWIDIEYS  {RDURUY

seESY BUL 6007 UBW TE

P Yum Hodad .353!..51 wasaid  ssepEny syl

SOOT PR TL POPUY Bl R Wy
SERERI S IO uolsy

ABGY SHIRPJG IO S

) 5
AR



7 abeyg

Ap saioen 98
SIUSAR APUIRLIIOD 150D MO JSH0 O BIIRUDD O
DHOMBIUIRI JURKAWIND Puz (0H5] 2 LM MIOM BM INSLIR 07 RUSIINOIY PUE SISAMET IO I oM T

SSRGS AJUOWW QUL JO JUSSIIR BU) AQ DOSnED AREPLISIUR S ¢
S PRssBOId 10U SBY GIUAM NI N0 IrDeS 0 SSES 1PBA © MBU N0 HOUNOD UDBN0IOG aUl yim DSiRUY

7

SIS puUe ddUsRdyE AIRSSI0BU B} I SIERPIARI 34 sy JEL ARy aassaBod DUR PORUN B 3G 0 Va0
; H

PARUNWILICT B4} J0 8 0] SORIUBUR DU SaIAS jo abues BLHAS B IOADD 03
e 3
P2 B SRS 8L o) B

Pusot spueppad pue suspiel ‘Aeqay aidepq o Auigissod BUY O ssuotsil Uy
QT YOS S Id SYa0d

“SUR BN SN0 MOIEG {IRI9P T PUER USHR DING 0 PUBILE 98 UM
SBESRONS H0EUW DIABIDIE SABY DRYRLLLD Agiofews oA suondnasg Bugunsuon UG oy ondsap BAsmon

sugyd pug
spafosd no dnisip ARADE 0) YasOUD SARY SIPRULICD ayy Jo Ajiouiiu e Asjeunuopun ‘sapimnuoddo augy o
ABuleul aased JS0W 2 ) DOpUOUSHY DARY DRI N6k 40 Awsofets auy 'sh aowy ey seaminuoddo pue
SEQUY SnOUeA U 0 spucdsal eIl oA Jo Aypoltw oy se suo JDNGIN B 199G sey Rd 158 ayy

SR SUrHny N0 DU SIUSWSASIYDR N0 SSURLLILNS ] Y104 0) Q0iAes simad o1 i3uy
AONVREONNES GNY LNIRIATINDY

"SpUNOIB pue ASGGy B JO SDURLIOTLU [RIIRUIICHAUD
PpUE fROHEISIY 941 Jo ssausieme dyqnd ssied o) pue ASngy oty jo SMosd By 95101 0} 191 L UOGRAISAL Asqay
didep( pauMY) ARSI PUR DN Ui ARSOD Buptom dnold JSWHOBAID 2 DWN0RY AMOU BABY Y

"RERASHY 0] UOROD Juy tOY) SIBGUIBW Q007 JOAD JO BSegeien
diysaaguisty e pur poddns Ayurimum 10 Muoamysy e dn ypng Apminb vaod ‘sisdopasp syeapd o Aagiy B
s 0} pounod ybnodog ey Ag paseaad Bupg sugd Bumolio 1007 W dnoif sej0id e pauuny Apsubun

SpLCB
SH puz BUIng muepuoM s Jo seiyfiney puR sbeley s Aclus O Swiod o1 suonmisuRl 40 pUR Mou
ARUNUILIOD 10 2iqeuD 0) ‘ARgyy asdejag S,UOIdWRIYON 40 Rarany oyl Bupnoes o peedipap founory &unen
vogdureguon g pounon yiinoing HOIGUIBHUION JO Joddns jng sl ypsm uonEsiuebin ABUNRRLOD £ Do TR

s1fho s AURYD B3 o) voneed U papsd s Buung LayeLspun UDEG SABY SSTADE J0 ADLEA SPIM

PAHUNUALOD 1801 PUR JE20] 4] JO 95N 21y 40j ‘s pue spuepped ‘spugipoom ‘suspied sbupang
2y Busudwos “Aaqay sidepa jo uoneasmsald pue uopeicisal 2l ale (speigoe s, swelon sAmey) sy
SATLLATIOY QY STATLRRO

ieeA syl Buunp soquus
o-00 ose Aewr SRDRULIOYD AAINIBXT SUL WOV BYI IR PRpIRE 2B SIBYWUSLY SRIUILDD BAINISXT SB umMOouy
OSfe 242 OUM 'SIEISNIY UDEREOSSE  peyeiodinIun SIGRIRYD 2 SR DRWNASUOD Sem ARLD i UsUM 1007
fquydas YIFT U0 pojdope LOINIISUD By Si gaigm usinnep Buwesof sy Ag pausrol s Auel Uy

3B pue prey Jstiebe SauRINSSe ajqeuoseat apiacd 6] aoeid Ul B4R SI0AUeD seudosdde
2USUS 0} pue pasodia st Awiep S YIYM 01 SfSH a4yl MRiaal pug Agpusn o1 Anp e IABY SeEsny ayy
R R

‘Augeus

pajeindioowun ue SIIMASU0D puep 9sny o peap 8 uewnocp Buiumaol sy Ag pegormiod st AR ayy
JUBLINGODR BURLIRAGY

ANFHIDYNYR ONY SONTNEIACD SUnomus

SUDT WOR TE (OpUT ou S oy
FEREIH S TSy

ADGHV RIS 0 spusng



£ aheg

PN
PRY
§d
,&" HOGT 2G0R0 17
omaniny v‘“\“\ \ \? .
b i P - SfRAR BRI
U

COMTOY ML S0 TYHIE ND
“UDUEP L SPUNY OU BIE 24041

‘paBURLD SBRIANDR JO paoR|dal 3G DInoM

Buipung Moy Japisuod o) wiey Buol s U A1esseoau a0 AISNCIAT0 DINOAM 3T AUBUD S 10 SOIMAIDE JURLD
Stil SNUIUOD OF S(IE 30 O} SIUNDSI JWSPDIUNS SARY BIn0M ASLD “tlE) HOUS SUT W 1Ryl JODISUOD So8isiiy oyt
MMFTATY TYIDNTNTY

GTOZ 405 SAADR{E0 N0 JoARD 01 SN AMGHE 0F miepueiy o) Aufojur pup supls DaseD ARSsasu
DU SBY UMYM SORURUDD mau aul oAb O v(UO4 0 Seguinul & se nod wse ¥ aa,p,;muo; DOHUT B UUAR

SIARDL UM
ISISSE 0] SHUNGR DAL UUM SiO0UM0A JO 2BuR spuv £ do[BASP puE Ulen “UnOst 0F AQige o uD pEng oL

uoppediind suspseb spuRipli 1SBT a4t ui UoydiuByON 10 DiBMme Piob syl Buunoas
Y] UORNGUIICD JolRil N0 painsus Sey umum slomumos mo Busn uspieh pates ano Bupoldul snupuon

QLR SUIA N0 BSIND puk seRoeg BULIBIRD N0 sandly
UNOT RAUSUOIGWIBHLION UM UoIoun{uos Ut 1elold UCHEDNRT SI00UDS BURNXS M0 doRARD DULIN.

SPRIERIE
Ayl wusm spafoid W ges JSaRIroA ABUY 85N 01 plesdepueg ypw dupsuopeel Jusiee o ssaafiong

UnidRLION J0 g sy o Aesisaue desd 055 Bl SlugeRo suogesiuebin snolea yim uoouniuos ug
SIUBAS Afiued pur sBLIPPSM

Ay A

JEARSEY 199G

RAILUEDY LOJCURLION

FINVRNOIHRG GNY INSNEAITNOY

SOOF W TE pepug AR
S F I ER N G R R T

AT S HNET 1 Spusig

»




i afiey

GOOT SN0 12

494 BNN

BJ§£.§SL.{ JRUBEBION
voduiByIIoN

afipugsuasnd /

DENOH SUESHIY

SRSIADY XP 1 paRueyD
SIUEUNCIOY DREIHRD pRsueyn
4BnoI0aseT ASjGOD

DHUYDERL G 0 SIUNODTE By
0 Bupuersiopun ldoid e sigeus ) JOpI0 W UMERID 3G pinoys uohuene uoludo Aur ur o o ()

¢
A

O QB USBG 10U SARY

Ao

DY £667T DU 40 stusagnhal Ay xmzmwe
sy ypam Ahuoo o) pue spiodal Bupunone oy uaam 0407008 OIUM Spunoase sdedaid ¢
PU2 10V €867 AU JO TH UORDBS LM SDUIBDIGN0E U Spionai Bupunoose dosy u_) -

Syustuzinbal ayy oadsal [puaiel AUR U JBY) SARNeq 0 2SNRD gqeUosEal el saail oM (1)

SUORUANE AU O SLUIOD SBU ISXIEW ol 'UORRURUEXD AL Y)M UOISUUD U]
USRS § AB0RUENS JRpsdepay

MO SIUSLUDTRE S W N0 6
SiSTe 380U O ;3-»1@;; Joded Bl puB | MIIA 2 pUE 9N, B oS SIUNCIDE Y Haaym o3 s usnib s

uoiuido ou Apusnibasuod mp‘ “Pore ue U poUnbod B PINOA BT SIUSDIAS B B apmnasd 10U op usel J:—;;)m
sampadord ayy wag WYoNns Aue DURLIROUNY SaRsrL] se nod woy suopeueidxe BupRSs puB ‘SIUNCOoR S
L S2EISONSID IO SUBY JENSIIUN AUR O UOJIRIBDISUCY STPR OSjE 3T SPI0TSS aSOUl Yim pajuesaid Sjunooar
2|y jo unsuedwiod e we Ajueys auy AQ dey spi0oad BURLINODIE RYI JO MOIARS B SODNRUL UDRBURLEXS Uy
UOISSRUIOT ARG sy A URAD SUCHOSHCE [EBUSD SUT UM BOUBIICIIE U 10 DOLUED SRM LIONBIIURXS ARy
}OdaE S IDHUERS JUSpUIDpE ST JO Sisey

THORUSTER A OF SUICD DABY SISTRL pinoied SUIagm 31815 03 -

pue oy CAAT 2l 4o {QM2)Eb uoRoss
SOpUNY UCISSIAUOTY AJUEt) By Ag USAD SUOIDRIT [RIBUBT) B W GMOD I8 Sanpenoid Sul MOJeE O -
I LRAT P Y0 gb HOEORG SSHUN SHUNODIR 2YY SULiexs -

103 Apjicpsuodsas A 1 3F

PANNDAL S UORRUIWRG Juspuadapy ur
Ty UDIDRG JapUny 4224 § q 10§ PRARbSI J0U 5 ypne uR
oneledald Byl 40§ SIISUNASL BIR SOBISN SATRID B L
IRUIRITAD PUT SOOISNL 0 sonRgrpsusdsss sanvadsoy

W pug ((10V C86T BYY) £ABT DV SepueyD & o (7)
R4 BRISUCD $39ISNL SAIBUD BUL SIINCIDE S JO U

‘uay 0 sy sebed uo N0 18S BO0T UIBKW T8 PopuD 12ad BYI 0 SJUN00aE oy uo Jadai |

4

RGOV SUGRIOY 10 SPSHY
FEERENTE N R ::.mo:s’*egg IR IR IR TR TR0 IR TR

j 2



£R91E SEEST
RECCT £89°17
56GT) Z54e
£L0'58 RIFOCT
7heY GEORE
Sorg 088

- AT
D7/ T#E'9
POSHT £95°%
0£8°7S 0466

]
o~
=
-
s
o0

DAYEISD SR
SO
2301,

8007

30LIY
izatel}
6007

SIS

o707

000°0¢

Qog’ne

G alieg

[on]
e
o
¥
[
(e}

65958 z
152

3 s830N
SN

PRSI

SIS {RDUEUY 953 0 Med Loy S0 By

CUTATHOS GIINNYD SN TRl

SaEatiog BN SPUn; 1910
SUNAS S0 NOTLYTIONGOTY

SAIWIOSIN
{HNIODINOI/ONIROINT I8N

popuRdNe SRNINNSRY RN

POPURTRD SRHNVIRL BN

SINOD PDUBWIDAOY

maloid uoneonpy

1oefosd SIOYS

oUBUIHEW Uapiel puR ashouueRY)
SHRIARIL OPIPILLD

51500 RUID

pue pios spool o 180 Bupel Busiipung
spung Bupssued o sses

QRN SEONHR0ERY

SHA0SHL Buuones EIng

spuny Bunesush 10 SSEANDY

SJLOTU ARRINIOA

Sy

porsmusl wioy seuanosad Buguaouy

SAINNOSIH DNIKONT

EHOY GO TT DADTT R BGI6Y

SRR ITY INDURNY @ suiniER

S

ALY BWEs



3 abeg

SIUSLURIRIS [ROURUL 9591} 40 Jed ULy S)0U Byl

QUYWL [~ IDNJRAN IHRLE

1AG geysqg
53 UC pouliis amm Dus goor 12QOI0) 1T UG Sadysniy Jo ueog oWy Ag peacidde cam SJUBLUMEIS jeDueUy Ay

REAPQT SPURY DRSS
L8'G SPUNY PEYDLASRIUN
01 SN

Fo Loy - _
CRGT7 Gog'sE 78 L £58°6 SINSSY A8

£39°17 geeise 8/8'GT L58°6 SITLTUHYDY
ANTUHD SSTT SIISSY IVIOL

0’1y LB 84T (z28) {STLLTTIEVILY/ SLISSY INTNHAT 49N

{062'1) (01511} (a82'1) {1£2°01) 5 2DA BLIG LM anp Buiey sIunDWy
SHOLIONNC

04111 9%/ %7 L1497 6E0’8 NUBQ 32 4SED
09¢'1 0131908 - G957y 8 DS

SLASEY INZUEND

Epp'0T BTL01 - 6401 £ sjasse siqibuey
SLISEY QIR

3 3 K] 3 STON

PENEISES SR
SO0 spuy SpLiny Spuny

el {2304 DEISLASEY PRSI
8002 60aE

SO0 PO TEW

oy SoumEyg

ASGY SRR I Shig



/ abng

DDLU LT €9
st dogsg
SRIO0UE oA DuisieIpung

9% ‘;2 Ot
L6896
G8b £e
¥ Ki
paIEISaL S8

300 H0a7

SONTTY ONIIVEINGD N0 S38anow

SIS
jepuRLL B} OF 53104 AN U PIPNDLE S PUN YORE JO asorling puR BIMBY By JO UORBURKND BULINng

pRpWmsal Jgnopied 10 PESIES UE SPUN) USUM IO JOUOR YL AQ Deupeds USUM B8UR SUDIN
AL 3y Jo S1efgo s wiypm sesodind papsa semonked 10f posn 24 ARIC URD SPURY DEINASOY

SIS
BYY JO LOURISIH BUI IR SBANR{NO S[IRILBUD DU LRiM SIUBRIONIR Ul PISN BG LRI SPUNE DeIISAIUN
SLIENoNIe pUng

SHPALIR JEIHBYD S)f U0 XBT Wk 3usxa St ARSI Su g
unBpExE]

U BUIAGLL MOIS DUR 339j0SG0
404 @duEMOoie Snp BUpEl DR ‘OnfRA RJGRSHRES JBU DUE 150D IO IBMO] U1 12 PRRPA RIE SIS
SHIOIS

- watidinba saynduwns
- aanbuep
- Wb usyMty

aouRRg BUDNpSY Uo 948
aourag BUDNPS Uo 04
aouReg BUDNNSL UG %4

L!'} (\‘

B ndesh pejeliise
SH IRAQ JoSSE {ORR GO Bilim 0 Jepic U S8l fenuue Buimojjol e ae pepiosd 9 UOgi}Q;f}GJ{‘!B{}
s3os88 poxy sjbuey

XD SISEQ B LD SRIEALDE O} PRIRDOYR Uonqg aaly Aot sbuipeay
0D asas CAoDolEn Sty oF polmes 3500 e opehaubBe
B OSISEG S[ENUDOE UR UG 0y DPSIUNCODR S awgipuadkg

OpuleD SBLMOSBN

SHNOSAL S0 BN BUT HIM HIRISIEL
igsed 03 pangune ADedp eg jouud
W STUIpRRY JSDUN pRUISSED UBeg S8y

"ATEINDDE BRUOSERS YIIM PRLRLEND S0 ULD JUNGLUE 313 PUL BLIODU B4 0 DRITIUD
Aela) si ARBYD QUT URUM SHHUARDY [EPDUSUL 4O JUBWIRIBIS 341 U0 DIPNDU 242 S30IN0SH BUILIOO iy
saxaesss Bupuoouy

“SORLBYD

AG Bugioday pue Doy ‘eoNIRid PERUSLULICOSY JO JUBUAIRIS BU) 16 siuswainbal BU PUB £667
Y SeNURY) Bt (007 AENUEL BAMDRLR) SPHNUT JRHBWIS JO) SPUEPURIS Duiodsy OBt B Ui
SDUEDIOIOR U} PUR “UDRUSALICY 1503 [eaLIoISY s} Jepun pajedesd Lesq DARY SIUDWUSIRIS jeiDueuy By
HOISAReS Bununoany

SRITTIOCS HRNLINDOONY

T

SO0 IO 1T PODUY 188 S a0y

STORIITI IS [BIOUNNL S0y O SSION

ASquy g I EpEeTg



g sbed

Bupung Yl AOUS OF poaRIsal ueeqg sy aapmeduion sy
e pepnpUl Apauodul sem oofosd SSIUINWILCD DY paedArpuey my) woy Bubung 10 oNg’sy

AIESIONOU DIDLA SILNOIIE 5,1884

1S9 WGy UMD StARRiediliod O} SPR USB] SARY SRUDWISNIDY 'O0G'COTY SPOSIKD MOU ISACUN
sy eous Bupunoooe seniode oy Bupunome siuswided pup s)dionad Wol 2A0W O3 pei SRy AUy ayy

SNIWASHIOY HYRA MO by

1oH'eg

- aae’s 51500 AIDSS [RII0S

TOp'EE ety sanees pue sabes
el

8007 6007

3

SESQ3 JAWES

200T YRl ¢
0 G007 WIBK TE DRpUB Jead syl uof pied sosusdxe S99ISIUY OU RIOM dUBYY
sosuadyy seopeniyg

LA |

Pala 42aA DU} 104

- (66'Sh

- O66E ALN0aS (81008 SEa15n. L

- 000’ 2 S3LIRes STYsTL
¥ 3

DaIRISE) 52

00T 5007

SLTAINTE ONY ROTIVEINGNEN SERISMNL ‘¥

04845
245 159 unnenadsq

1668 SIS0 WIH0L 83
sponh dous 10 oD
1 SuRAs BUSIRIDLTY 40 150D

SIS0 '35
1 219 UONBHUNLDS 59815N 1
9 $095 BUISH
i NS BuuedO

=
-
Lr
4 ¢
o~

3

o oY Y Ly s
o~ :

yud

—~y

‘Y\

et

o~
e A R

W £ P

(23]

P

o=l

D

N

~
<
-

0w
D DY e VY LY %
A oy ™
YN

E F
pIEsal S8
R0GE GOOT

SA5G0 HIHAO QNY QO8N SQOO A0 ASO0 'SRIOTL DNISIVHGNDY e

SOGT HMBR 1T Poplid Ha) ol 468
DRNUREES VTSRS DI s oy ey

ASGUY Soig o spuEsig



3
pajeisal e

8007

gac’y
-2
3

pERIsRl SB
2007

82407

£L9°6

TH'¢
z66°s

SICHDIAT JI0

ABINTAS IPDOS BUS UOREXE |

SICHDBID DR L

YA INO NIHLIA 300 ONITIVS SINAQOMNY SHOLTanm

88 FAS )
5R¢ 568
518 6851°¢
ve1 £e¢

008’1

3

wswdinbs
Bk fglatiting]

SANDIBIN

ara’s
Q46711

3

Jusadinba
LSRR

SHOOAS

SHOMS

H2007 Yol T3V
QUO7 HoR TE 3
FTFA HO0E L3N
GO UEN TE Y
esh oy sbieun
8007 fdv 1 W
NOLLVIOSNgaQ
GU0T YRl TE Y
SROWRNY

8007 OY T3
ASO0

SLISSY QUKL FISIDNTL

i

Ao

SOOE MEN TE POPUY 894 S Wy

FERR TS R ST s SOl

RSOy SrieHe 0 SPOEES



259°¢

{R1e’nen)

L88°8

(£9:707)

85T
{(tpz'a)

(5g5's)
3
SOUNY
L) JULIRAOH

[ ery

84551

(Gev'61T)

7
popuadxa
S80IN05EY

O4R'EET

000°0T

Qo'oY

vty
348°€1Y

3
SE2N0SAY

Hunnonuy

{4RG"5)

3

SOUNY

Ut JLinlisaoti

BN

=
<
]
w>

s 4

41

o~
¥
B

Z

RO/ W

01 abay

g

SONNL TRLGL

a{oad vonsonpg
meloud sounyg
KPUNE PIINLNSON

puny [RIeuRs
SPURY POIIAISHAUR

PSMON0] SE a2 3A00R DU U ROPROU SpUn U JUSBUISAMIW 1N
SRS TWAOL
ysfosd uogEInpy

afoud spoounsg
SRUNY PRPLGSTY

DUNY [RIBLE0
SPINRY PORRLISAIUN

SONDS NI INSRRAOK oY

GOOT YAIeR TE POopuR o Sy g
SROBURGNY - SRS et S oy sy

ADGGY SICRENH JO S



QL85

{09e'1)
(87
b
PeRY
76051

rocte
L5888

£LL°ET
TOpEE

¥
pRgEISel se
3007

11 abey

SIUBLIIRIS feiuenly Aynieis 1) 40 Jied 1oy Jou ssop abed siyy

nes
Gee’sy

PR
]
L 4
o~
[

Y L e
BT e

N2 07 DY LY et
-

~

N e iy
Rant

00081

¥

6007

A paronoy
SIEOT IDUTUIDAGY

wafoxt uogeonpy

wariRd Bupung pefosd spousy
uBpIel puR ASNOLUBZIG
SRPAIOE JQBIINGTD

30038 Buisa

JRuidinbs seyndwon
HORERNIEBD Senhiehy
uopenasdep watudinba ustpay
53500 WOt 89,

sponh doys o 1son

spuens Buisieung Jo 1so0
sahem Lon) wieay

WID0E B2 085 {2005 ,Sa1SNi L
W0 €37 SRUBRS S3R05NE
Mooy Buuadn

RSO3 Jaze pue pros spool o jsen Bupesy Bgsruaping

CRONIINT SIOHNOSYY

SRXINOSB BURLIOOL JRIn L

SRUODL] W00 88}

atgonu doys

auosy e Buisipipung

spung Bunerusd jog semagay

suopdunsgng

SIS

suoneunn Apung
SUOIIBLOD SSTOUUDRD
suisou Asyunioa

SITENOSTY HNIWOINT

T O A T T He ey e R T
SSHTATIOY [P UB 10 SO ey

ASGHY SRINS O SPEEHS




-z

3

RIS SR

80437

1 obeg

SJURLIERYS Rty AS0INges By o

Hed Lo 10U seop afiel SWL

{samipusdss) fewonuy N
PORRING SR0MSRY jo10)

BUURLBHEL pUR Shpdoy
SBUpUNS

Assuoneis pue abmsog
auodaz g
QxULINSUY

N pue sael sy
OBF RID0S S99y
SBLURRS !s.aa;s:‘u_;_
weundouey

=
!

ms

OO TR ™ R S I YWY
SRSy Ty 14 IO N SRREIEE

ASGEY SIUURE 30 SpIISLG



Agenda ltem 10

Item No.
Appendices =q (M p
{gﬂ 3 10
NORTHAMPTON
BOROUGH COUNCIL
CABINET REPORT
Report Title Neighbourhood Model
AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC
Cabinet Meeting Date: 3 March 2010
Key Decision: NO
Listed on Forward Plan: YES
Within Policy: YES
Policy Document: No
Directorate: Environment & Culture
Accountable Cabinet Member: Councillor Trini Crake
Councillor Paul Varnsverry
Ward(s) Non-specific
1. Purpose
1.1 The Council aims to make Northampton a better place to live by improving the

1.2

1.3

1.4

way it engages with local people to give them more say in the opportunities
and issues in their communities that affect their quality of life.

A new neighbourhood model is proposed that will enhance the way we
consult, involve and deliver services to the public that will enable us to achieve
this aspiration.

The purpose of this report is to seek Cabinet’s in principle approval of the
proposed new neighbourhood model and to request Cabinet’s agreement to
commence implementation, subject to constitutional changes being agreed by
Full Council.

A description of the proposed model and how it will work is provided within the
report.

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/24/02/10 1




Recommendations

2.2

2.3

24

25

That Cabinet approves in principle the model for neighbourhood working
proposed within this report as a means of improving engagement with local
communities and making public services more responsive to their needs.

That any constitutional changes required to implement the neighbourhood
model are referred to the Constitutional Review Working Party, for its
consideration and to make recommendations to Full Council.

That Cabinet delegates authority to the Director of Environment and Culture,
in consultation with the relevant portfolio holder, to take any actions necessary
to further refine the model.

That Cabinet notes the financial implications for the council arising from the
implementation of the neighbourhood model, as set out in paragraph 4.2.

That Cabinet agrees to receive a further report after a period of experience,
review and consultation on the proposed neighbourhood model to monitor its
implementation and to agree any amendments to the model that may be
required.

Issues and Choices

© 0
L .

3.1.2

Background

It is the ambition of Northampton Borough Council to be amongst the best
Councils in terms of public services by 2013. We have agreed this ambition
because we believe that this is what the people of Northampton deserve and
have a right to expect.

The Council believes it will only achieve this ambition if it is able to properly
listen to its communities and starts to empower local people to make decisions
about the opportunities and issues in their neighbourhoods that affect their
quality of life.

At times of tremendous financial challenge it is even more important that we
keep this ambition at the forefront of our minds. Finding a way to work closely
with our partners to engage and involve local people, effectively support
councillors in their role of community champions and deliver services that are
flexible and responsive to customer need is essential to the achievement of
this ambition.

The purpose of the neighbourhood model is to put in place a new way of
working focused around neighbourhoods and communities that has the
potential to deliver real change to all areas of Northampton. It must however
be recognised that dramatic change will not happen overnight. The proposed
model, once implemented, will need to be given the necessary support to
allow it to grow, develop and mature. Improvement flowing from the model will
be incremental and will build up over time, rather than delivering immediate
transformation.

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/24/02/10 2



3.1.5 The scope of the project to deliver the neighbourhood model has extended
beyond council services and responsibilities. Key delivery partners such as
Police, Fire and the County Council have been involved.

3.1.6 Through the proposed neighbourhood model the Council aspires to:

e agree with partners shared neighbourhood boundaries based on natural
neighbourhoods and electoral wards, covering the whole of the borough

e ensure that a deep understanding of the needs and attributes of
neighbourhoods and communities informs the way local services are
designed and delivered in the future

e put the frameworks in place to promote local democracy and support
councillors in their local leadership role

e develop robust mechanisms to consult, involve and empower communities
(including those who are hard to reach)

e put arrangements in place that will support targeted interventions to close
the gap between the poorest and most affluent neighbourhoods so that
nobody in Northampton is disadvantaged by where they live

e make mainstream public services more accessible and responsive to local
needs through devolvement, colocation and integration

3.1.7 A variety of measures have already been implemented in Northampton aimed
at advancing this agenda, including neighbourhood services, neighbourhood
managed areas, neighbourhood coordinators, environmental wardens and
neighbourhood partnerships. These initiatives have not been coordinated or
embedded in the day to day business of the Council and its partners.
Furthermore they have been based on a range of different neighbourhood
boundaries and have resulted in a two tier system. They have however been,
to some extent, effective in their own right in delivering improved outcomes
and will provide some learning for the future.

3.1.8 This report proposes that we move to a single model for neighbourhood
working that is embraced by local people, elected members and all key
partner agencies across the town. It is proposed that the model is
implemented borough wide and becomes a part of the way we do things in
Northampton. To ensure our model has sustainable impact it is important that
we join partners, elected members and citizens together at the strategic,
democratic and community level. This type of coherent, systematic approach
will enable us to maximise the impact of collective resources on priority
outcomes.

3.1.9 Recent government White Papers (Strong and Prosperous Communities
(2006), Communities in Control — Real People, Real Power (2007)) send out a
clear message that a key role of local government is to work with public
service partners and communities to sustainably improve the quality of life of
local people. The White Papers set out a clear agenda for local government in
relation to community leadership, working with partners, local democracy and
community empowerment that requires the type of coherent, systematic
approach to neighbourhood management that is proposed in this report.

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/24/02/10 3



There is a clear indication that this message would not change in the event of
a change of government.

3.1.10 From April 2009, through comprehensive area assessment (CAA), Councils

will be judged on how effectively they work with their partners and
communities to deliver more responsive services and better local outcomes.
CAA recognises that what matters locally varies from place to place and
requires us to demonstrate how local services work together to make efficient
and effective use of collective resources to meet the needs and priorities of
the community. The proposed neighbourhood model will enable us to respond
better to the requirements of CAA.

3.1.11 As part of the CAA process ,The Place Survey is undertaken. The survey

focuses on quality of life by asking people about their perception of the area
where they live. It provides us with a useful source of data to understand how
we need to change and what our areas for improvement should be. One such
area for improvement highlighted by the Place Survey is in relation to the
perception of local people of their ability to influence decisions in their locality.
The neighbourhood model will be a vital tool in enabling us to improve
performance against this indicator, as well as having a positive impact on
Place Survey results overall.

3.1.12 The police have now moved to a single target on local confidence. The single

confidence measure is a target they share with local authorities. It is intended
to focus energy and resources on the most serious issues that blight
communities.

3.1.13The single confidence measure is as much an issue for the Council as it is for

the Police. It requires public services to come together to:

e work in partnership
e identify local concerns
e tackle those concerns

e report back to people on how their concerns have been responded to and
what action has been taken

3.1.14The neighbourhood model proposed within this report provides the type of

framework that is essential if we are to respond effectively to the challenges of
the single confidence measure.

3.1.15The proposed neighbourhood model recognises the strategic significance to

3.2

the borough of the town centre, which sits within the central area, and as such
also provides for appropriate additional engagement arrangements for the
town centre business community.

Neighbourhood Model

3.2.1 The proposed neighbourhood model is primarily about more effectively

engaging and involving people in what goes on in their communities so that
they take ownership of local opportunities and issues and feel empowered to
address them.

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/24/02/10 4



3.2.2 The concept of the proposed neighbourhood model is that it sits within a wider
public service framework that ensures a structured and systematic approach
at the strategic, thematic and local level.

3.2.3 The purpose of such a framework is to ensure that at all levels, there is a
coherence around public services that means we are able to work effectively
together and target resources at agreed priorities.

3.2.4 Four areas have been identified as the potential boundaries for the
neighbourhood model — North, East, Central, South West.

3.2.5 A diagram of the proposed neighbourhood model is provided below. As
illustrated, its key element are as follows:
e Area based services
e Area boards

e Local forums

Area Based
Services
x 4
Cabinet / Relevant
Portfolio Holder
Information / decision
as appropriate
~ ~ \A
Area
Board
x4

Area Co-ordinator

Local Forum

x 4
(Ward Meeting — This is
the place where Ward
Councillors engage
with the Community)

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/24/02/10 5



3.2.6

3.2.7

3.2.8

3.2.9

It will be the responsibility of the relevant director to keep the relevant portfolio
holder informed of activity, issues and progress arising from local forums and
area officer boards, as appropriate. Matters requiring an executive decision
will be referred by the relevant portfolio holder to Cabinet for its consideration.

Constitution

To further enhance the governance of the Neighbourhood Model, it is
proposed that the Constitutional Review Working Party incorporates the
Neighbourhood Model within its current work programme and recommends
changes to the constitution to Full Council.

Area based services

The purpose of the area services teams will be to keep neighbourhoods clean
and tidy by providing effective environmental services, helping to reduce
crime, fear of crime, ASB and the visible impact of crime on the environment,
e.g. graffiti, fly tipping, vandalism. The establishment of area services teams
will make it easier to identify opportunities for coordinated activity, joined up
working, integration and further devolvement of services.

Plans are currently being developed to consider colocation with the Police at a
location in each of the four areas. It is envisaged that Police SCT and council
staff would be permanently based at these sites and there would also be ‘hot
desk’ facilities in each location for officers from other agencies or council staff
whose permanent base is elsewhere.

3.2.10 Area boards

The purpose of the area boards is to receive for action information about local
issues and priorities from local forums. It is proposed that their membership
consists of the area coordinator and appropriate senior officers from services
such as street care/grounds, housing, public protection, police and youth, as
well as officers from other partner agencies such as Fire and PCT.

3.2.11There is potential for area boards to take the lead on place shaping and

neighbourhood regeneration. It is suggested however that their initial focus is
likely to be environmental issues and community safety, but their remit should
not be considered to be limited to these issues and, in any case, there should
be an ambition to broaden their focus in the future.

3.2.12 Local forums (ward meetings)

The focal point of the proposed neighbourhood model is councillors and the
people they represent. It is therefore entirely dependent on effective
community engagement. Whilst it is intended that local forums will be the key
vehicle for engaging local people at ward level, the proposed neighbourhood
model will require a flexible approach to working with councillors and
communities that is based on what works for them. It will be the role of the
area coordinator to take the lead on developing a range of means for effective
engagement, involvement and empowerment.

3.2.13 Local forums will operate at ward level and should be regarded as ward

meetings. Their focus will be very local to ensure close engagement with the

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/24/02/10 6



public. It is proposed that there will be four local forums, one for each area.
The local forums will rove within their area, meeting in different locations, on a
regular basis and returning to each location at regular intervals. Attendance at
local forums is proposed as follows but will vary depending on the issues to be

discussed:
Attendee Purpose
Councillors Community leadership
Public Engagement/ involvement
Area coordinator Support/facilitation
Police SCT rep Local identified priority setting
Council/County Council officers Information/advice
Others — as requested Information/advice

3.2.14lt is proposed that local forums replace other existing public engagement
forums so as to ensure a ‘single conversation’ between local people and
public services.

3.2.15The proposed purpose of local forums is to provide a regular public meeting at
ward level that is clearly identified by all stakeholders as the place where local
people go to meet with councillors and partners to determine local priorities for
improvement, raise issues and concerns and find out how to become involved
in improving their neighbourhood.

3.2.16It is proposed that local forums are supported and facilitated by area
coordinators who will work on behalf of councillors by taking the priorities
determined at ward level to the area boards to be addressed and will keep
councillors informed of progress and actions, so that they can update the
public at subsequent local forums when it returns to their ward.

3.2.17 Local forums (ward meetings) — role of elected members
An effective neighbourhood model should be driven by elected members from
the very heart of the communities they serve. It should provide front line
councillors with a clearly defined place within their ward for undertaking their
community leadership role and ensure that they have easy access to the
public resources they need to influence and improve their communities and
get things done quickly and effectively.

3.2.18lt is proposed that councillor involvement in the neighbourhood model is, in the
main, through the leadership they provide to local forums, which operate at
ward level. It is envisaged that, in addition to borough councillors, county
councillors may also be invited to attend the local forum when it is in their
ward, if they wish to.

3.2.19The local forums will provide the venue for councillors to determine local

priorities for their ward, and through their area coordinator, ensure that these
issues get appropriately addressed.

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/24/02/10 7



3.2.20Existing community meetings such as JAGs/community panels will evolve into

local forums as the model is rolled out.

3.2.20 Area coordinators

It is proposed that four area coordinators are appointed, one for each area.
Their purpose will be to make the neighbourhood model work by providing
effective support to councillors in their wards through ensuring that there is a
robust interface between local forums and area boards. The suggested role of
the area coordinator will be to support and facilitate the neighbourhood model
at area level.

3.2.21 Duties will include:

e Supporting frontline councillors in their involvement in local forums

e Supporting, facilitating and coordinating the activity of the relevant area
board

e Supporting, facilitating and coordinating the activity of the relevant local
forum

e Ensuring the coherence and coordination of all elements of the
neighbourhood model

3.2.22 Once options and choices have been considered an implementation plan will

be developed. A proposed ‘go live’ date of April 2010 is suggested, subject to
Full Council approving constitutional changes.

3.2.23 Care will be taken to ensure a smooth and gradual transition from current to

3.3
3.3.1

3.3.2

new arrangements in order to ensure changes are viewed as an evolvement
from existing arrangements rather than a change in direction.

Choices (options)

If Cabinet choose to Implement the proposed neighbourhood model it will help
to empower local people to make decisions about the opportunities and issues
in their communities that affect their quality of life and will therefore ultimately
help to make Northampton a better place to live.

Cabinet could choose not agree to implement the proposed neighbourhood
model and should do so if they are not satisfied that it will ultimately achieve
its high ambitions for the communities of Northampton.

Implications (including financial implications)

4.2
4.2.1

Policy

The proposed neighbourhood model does not directly impact on policy,
although it will provide a framework for neighbourhood working against which
future policy may be developed.

Risk and resources

Implementation of the proposed neighbourhood model will deliver annual
savings to the council of approximately £300k. These savings are mainly
derived from the implementation of area working arrangements.

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/24/02/10 8



422

The Council will fund two of the area coordinator posts and the Police will also
fund two. Funding of these posts will be reviewed after 12 months.

4.2.3 As with any major transformation there are risks associated with the changes
that will need to be implemented. It is important that these risks are identified,
assessed and appropriately mitigated.

4.3 Legal

4.3.1 There are no legal implications directly arising from this report

44 Equality

441 There are no equalities issues directly associated with this report. The
Council has stringent standards in relation to equalities and any changes
introduced will be fully consistent with these standards and, as appropriate,
will be subject to equality impact assessment.

4.5 Consultees (Internal and External)

451 A range of stakeholders have been consulted on the development of the
proposed neighbourhood model, including councillors, officers, Police, County
Council, Fire Service, PCT and other agencies.

4.5.2 Further consultation will take place throughout the initial implementation phase
so that the model can be developed and improved.

4.6 How the Proposals deliver Priority Outcomes

4.6.1 The proposals contained in this report have the potential to contribute to all
five of the council’s priority outcomes.

4.7 Other Implications

4.7.1 None

5. Background Papers

5.1 None

Julie Seddon, Director of Environment & Culture, ext 7379

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/24/02/10 9



Agenda ltem 11

Item No.
Appendices =q (M p
{g‘ﬂ A 11
1 )
NORTHAMPTON
BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET REPORT

Report Title Leisure and Sport Strategic Business Review —
Management Options Appraisal

AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC

Cabinet Meeting Date: 3 March 2010

Key Decision: YES

Listed on Forward Plan: YES
Within Policy: YES

Policy Document: No

Directorate: Environment & Culture
Accountable Cabinet Member: Councillor Paul Varnsverry
Ward(s) Non-specific

1. Purpose

1.1 To advise Cabinet of the conclusions and recommendations arising from an
appraisal of potential management options for leisure and sports provision,
undertaken as part of a strategic business review of the service.

Recommendations

2.1 That Cabinet notes the outcome of an appraisal of potential management
options for leisure and sports provision (see annex 1).

2.2 That, in accordance with the outcome of the management options appraisal,
Cabinet agrees to the commencement of the implementation phase for the
establishment of a new charitable trust for the provision of leisure and sports
development services.

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/25/02/10 1



Issues and Choices

—_—

3.1.2

3.1.4

3.1.5

3.1.6

3.2
3.2.1

3.2.2

Background

The council has high ambitions for the health and well being of its local
communities. A fit and active society will enjoy improved quality of life and have
longer life expectancy. In pursuit of such aspirations the council, along with its
public and private sector partners, has an important role to play in enabling
better access and provision of leisure facilities and promoting regular
participation in sport.

In addition to the positive impact good quality, accessible leisure and sports
facilities will have on the lives of local people, other potential benefits are far
reaching and will range from contributing to the regeneration of the borough and
increasing its economic vitality to improving social cohesion and raising
aspirations.

The prevention of ill-health will also have a positive impact on the demand for
health care, which will help to reduce the growing strain on NHS budgets.

Of course such benefits will not flow automatically and the council therefore
needs to carefully consider how it responds to ensure maximum impact from
within the reality of limited and reducing financial resources.

To address this challenge, the council has undertaken a strategic business
review of leisure and sport. An output of the review was the leisure and sports
facilities strategy. Approved by Cabinet last month, it provides the essential
strategic framework that will enable sound decisions to be made about the role
the council should play and how that role can complement the other public
agencies and private sector providers.

The strategic business review has also delivered a management options
appraisal. In pursuit of the vision of a fit and healthy Northampton, a range of
options have been robustly evaluated to determine the optimum management
model for the council’s leisure and sports facilities and services.

Leisure and sport strategic business review

The development of a leisure and sport strategy was initiated by the council in
November 2008 and consultants Knight, Kavanagh and Page (KKP) were
appointed to undertake this work. But the need to undertake a strategic
business review of these services and the way they are provided led to the
revision of the brief of that commission part way through, resulting in the
determination of a three phase approach, as follows:

Phase 1 | Baseline assessment Completed May 09
Phase 2 | Strategy development Completed Dec 09
Phase 2a | Management options - evaluation Completed Mar 10
Phase 3 | Management options - implementation | Due to complete Mar 11

The first phase of the leisure and sport strategy was completed in May 20009.
The work undertaken established a base line for sport and leisure facilities in
Northampton. It built on previous key reports and considered the contextual
aspects of Northampton and its predicted population growth. It analysed the

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/25/02/10 2



supply and demand of provision in the borough in order to identify any additional
infrastructure that may be required. In particular, it summarised the need for:

e New facilities within the borough

e The continued provision of existing facilities

e The continued provision of school swimming pools

e Facilities for emerging sports such as adrenalin sports

o Facilities for people of retirement age

3.2.3 The first phase of the leisure and sport strategy was a valuable piece of work
and provided us with a firm basis from which to undertake a strategic business
review.

3.3 Strategic business review — leisure and sport
3.3.1 The strategic business review of leisure and sport was undertaken in two
further concurrent phases (phase 2 and phase 2a), as follows:

3.3.2 Phase 2 - development of the leisure and sport facilities strategy
The leisure and sport facilities strategy was approved by Cabinet on 10™
February 2010. This phase of the study determined the council’s strategy for
facility provision across Northampton. It has

e Taken account of the national, regional and local context for sport and
other policies and publications which enables planners and policy
makers to take informed decisions on enhancing local provision

e |dentified the role of each facility within the context of Northampton
being a desirable place to live, work and play as well as achieving
national targets in increasing participation in sport and physical activity
and health improvement

¢ |dentified the investment requirements for each of the existing facilities
to enable them to fulfil their role

¢ |dentified opportunities for facilities to be rationalised
e Specifically, identified the development options for Lings Forum

¢ |dentified the role of Northamptonshire schools’ sports and swimming
facilities

¢ |dentified the key stages of the strategy delivery plan through until 2026

¢ |dentified potential funding sources to deliver the strategy

3.3.3 Phase 2a — management options appraisal
The management options appraisal is the subject of this report. It has
identified and evaluated the management options for the delivery of leisure
and sport in Northampton. In particular, it has considered the potential
benefits that models such as charitable trusts and private sector provision
might provide.

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/25/02/10 3



3.34

3.3.5.

3.3.6

3.3.7

3.3.8

3.3.9

3.4
3.4.1

Specifically phase 2a has:
e Determined if the Council is currently achieving value for money

¢ |dentified a range of opportunities to maximise financial advantage and,
in particular, to access new opportunities for savings and investment

¢ |dentified criteria against which the potential options can be measured.

¢ |dentified the advantages and disadvantages of each management
option

¢ Undertaken a financial evaluation of each of the options

¢ Reached a conclusion as to the best management option for NBC

Management options evaluation - conclusion

As described in paragraphs 3.3.3/4, a robust options appraisal has taken
place that has evaluated a range of delivery models against a number of
qualitative and financial criteria. It has emerged that the management option
most likely to enable us to meet our strategic and operational objectives is a
new charitable trust.

A charitable trust that is correctly set up and provided with the appropriate
leadership and support will have the potential to herald an era of aspiration
and innovation. New freedoms and opportunities will be there to be grasped
and greater commerciality will be encouraged and promoted. The new
charitable trust’'s ability to attract and retain a talented board from a broad
range of backgrounds — for example the healthcare profession, the financial
sector, the legal profession and both amateur and professional sports, along
with representatives from the local authority(ies) — will be key to its success,
as will its ability to forge strong partnerships with key public agencies.

Within the context of the mixed economy that exists in Northampton for leisure
and sport, a charitable trust will offer the council the most potential to achieve
its desired outcomes and provide the best return on its investment. Ultimately
it will deliver the most sustainable solution through the period of austerity that
the public sector has now entered.

Phase 3 — implementation of preferred management option

Building on the recommendations arising from phase 2a to put in place a new
management model for leisure and sport, it is now proposed that phase 3 of
this project focuses on implementing the new arrangements.

It is anticipated that the implementation phase will take a year and it is
proposed that project support is commissioned to manage the implementation.
A robust project plan will be developed which will be closely monitored.

Choices (options)

Cabinet can choose to agree to commence implementation of a new
charitable trust for the provision of leisure and sports services leading to
innovation, improved outcomes and reduced costs.

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/25/02/10 4



3.4.2

Alternatively, Cabinet could decide to continue with the current delivery model
which provides a good service to the people of Northampton but faces growing
financial challenges each year as the level of subsidy to this non-statutory
service competes with other high level, statutory priorities. Careful
consideration therefore needs to be given to the sustainability of the option not
to change delivery models.

Implications (including financial implications)

4.1
411

4.2
4.21

422

423

424

425

426

Policy

The management options appraisal has been undertaken within the wider
context of the recently approved leisure and sport facilities strategy that sets
leisure and sport in Northampton within a strategic context that is aligned to
plans for regeneration and growth in the area.

Resources and Risk

For the foreseeable future, the council will be required to subsidise the
charitable trust. Payment of subsidy will be tied to the delivery of outcomes.
A charitable trust will also have access to funding streams that are not open to
local authorities and will be better placed to negotiate funding from partners.

It is anticipated that implementation of the recommended management option
for the provision of leisure and sports development will have the potential to
achieve efficiencies and savings. The KKP options appraisal identifies
potential savings of up to £260k against 2008/09 outturn figures. The actual
level of subsidy will be a matter for negotiation between the Council and the
Trust's shadow board and will be influenced by the perceived robustness of
current budgets, the potential for efficiencies/additional income and the extent
to which risk is transferred. Moving to a charitable trust may provide a means
of capping future costs and might also protect the service from the impact tight
financial constraints could have on discretionary areas of activity.

Further opportunity to reduce subsidy may exist if the council is able to exploit
its more advantageous position in relation to capital borrowing and uses this
advantage to offset revenue contributions. This potential will need to be fully
explored during the implementation phase.

The original leisure and sports facilities project was commissioned through a
tender process at a cost of £43,000. Revisions of the brief gave rise to a cost
increase of £7,500, bringing the total cost of the project to date to £50,500,
which has been funded by a contribution of £19,500 from Northamptonshire
County Council and the balance from LABGI.

The cost of the implementation phase is estimated at approximately £120,000.
It is recommended that this is funded from the council’s investment fund.

There will be risks associated with the establishment and operation of a
charitable trust, as indeed there are risks associated with providing the current
service. These risks will be appropriately identified, assessed and managed
as part of the project implementation.

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/25/02/10 5



4.3
4.3.1

4.4
441

4.5
451

4.6
4.6.1

4.7
4.71

5.

Legal

The establishment of a charitable trust has complex and challenging legal
implications which will need to be carefully managed. These implications will
require expert legal advice and guidance which will need to be externally
commissioned. Legal advice accounts for a significant part of the total funding
required for phase 3 (paragraph 4.2.5).

Equality

An equalities impact assessment was undertaken of the leisure and sport
facilities strategy, which provides the strategic context for this report. Due
consideration has also been given to equalities issues in the undertaking of
the options appraisal. The council has high standards in relation to equalities
and any changes introduced will be fully consistent with these standards and,
as appropriate, will be subject to further equality impact assessment.
Consultees (Internal and External)

The strategic business review has involved consultation with a broad range of
stakeholders and such views have been used to inform the outcomes of the
process to date.

How the Proposals deliver Priority Outcomes

The proposals contained in this report will significantly contribute to the priority
outcomes of ‘ improving health to enhance the well-being of our communities’
and ‘a well managed organisation that puts the customer at the heart of what
we do’.

Other Implications
None

Background Papers

Leisure & sport strategy facilities strategy (February 2010)

Julie Seddon, Director of Environment & Culture, ext 7379

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/25/02/10 6



KNIGHT KAVANAGH: & PAGE

NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL
OPTIONS APPRAISAL

FINAL REPORT

MARCH 2010

Integrity, Innovation, Inspiration

1-2 Frecheville Court ¢ off Knowsley Street « Bury BL9 OUF
T 0161 764 7040 <« F0161 764 7490 <« E mail@kkp.co.uk ¢« www.kkp.co.uk




Quality assurance
Report origination
Quality control
Client comments

Final approval

Name

David McHendry
John Eady

Julie Seddon

Date

07.01.10
08.01.10
09.02.10



NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

OPTIONS APPRAISAL

CONTENTS

[ 1o [0 o i oo W PP P PP PPPPPPPPPPI 5
OVerview Of CUIMENT SEIVICE ... ..o 7
Value FOr MONEBY ... 9
Trusts — Not For Profit Distribution Organisations (NPDO) ..o 12
Partnership With An EXisting Trust.........ccooviiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 18
Private Sector Partnerships...........ooiviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 20
Management OptioNS APPraiSal..............uuuuuueuumuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeieeeeeaeeaneeneneeenneeennnnnneenennnne 22
Financial APPraiSal........ccoouuiiiiiii e e e e e e e ees 27
Commercial SECtOr APPrOACK ... 31
L070] o3 (1] o] o [P EPPTR PP 34

R{=Tel0] 010 1=] aTo F= 1 (] o [T 35



NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL
OPTIONS APPRAISAL

Jan 2010 3-029-0809 Draft final report: Knight Kavanagh & Page



NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL
OPTIONS APPRAISAL

INTRODUCTION

This section of the report details the management options that Northampton Borough
Council (NBC) should consider. As outlined within the Council’s brief it focuses on the
following key areas:

4 Determination of whether if the Council is achieving value for money from its current
sport and leisure service.

<« Identification of the range of opportunities to maximise financial advantage, and in
particular access opportunities for savings and investment that may not currently be
available to NBC.

<« Identification of criteria against which potential options can be measured.

<« Identification of the advantages and disadvantages of each management option.

< Afinancial evaluation of each option.

The scope of the facilities and services included within this review include:

< Mounts Baths.

< Lings Forum.

<« Danes Camp.

<« Sports Development.

It should be noted that the review does not consider in detail the options for the
management of the Council’s Cultural Services (including the cinema at Lings Forum);
however, some comment is made with respect to this wider scope in the conclusion to the
report.

Key facts about transferring sport and leisure services to external partners

The following is a ‘snapshot’ of the key facts about alternative management options. It
also provides a flavour of some of the key decisions the Council must take in the context
of a decision to transfer the management of its services to an alternative service provider:

<« The Council will retain ownership of the assets (i.e. sports facilities etc.), regardless
of which management option is chosen.

4 The type of lease arrangement for facilities is dependent upon the age and quality of
facilities being transferred. The private sector and trusts are, in general, only willing
to take on new facilities on a full repairing lease basis.

<« Itis normally more cost effective for the Council to invest capital in facilities than the
partner, as the partner is unlikely to be able to reclaim the VAT on the investment.

< Staff currently employed in the service will transfer to the new partner with protected
terms and conditions of employment (i.e. TUPE will apply).

< TUPE does not cover pension provisions.

4 The Council must consider if it will ‘require’ the partner to become an admitted body
to the local government pension scheme, or determine whether a broadly
comparable pension scheme will be sufficient.

< If the Council chooses the admitted body route, it will have to advise on whether it is
willing to pay for an open or closed scheme.

MARCH 2010 3-060-0809 Draft Final Report: Knight Kavanagh & Page



NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL
OPTIONS APPRAISAL

4 Although the partner may wish to purchase support services (e.g., HR, payroll, legal)
from the Council in the initial stages, it may ultimately decide to purchase these from
the external market in future years. Therefore, the funding it receives for the provision
of support services cannot ‘tie’ it to having to purchase these from the Council (i.e.,
as a sole provider).

<« If the Council provides financial support services to the partner it will have to ensure
that all funds are paid directly into the partner’s bank account and not the Council’s. It
has been the case for some trusts that their income is paid into the Council’s bank
account.

<« Similarly, it needs to be clear that the partner is purchasing services from the Council
and that this is demonstrated with the appropriate financial transactions.

< Where the partner does purchase services from the Council, the Council will have to
perform against the SLA developed by the partner, rather than giving the partner
‘what it is prepared to provide’.

4 If the partner does not wish to purchase any support services from the Council it
needs to be given the wherewithal (i.e., staff, budget, infrastructure) to access these
support services from the open market. The Council must then deal with the residual
costs associated with providing support services to the externalised service (e.g.
absorb costs across other departments, restructure, redundancy, etc.).

<« If the Council transfers to a Trust, it will be entitled to have up to 20% representation
on the board of trustees.

4 A trust can achieve up to 80% mandatory rate relief on its facilities.

4 If the Council transfers to a private operator it will have to accept that this
organisation will wish to build an element of profit into the contract. Depending on the
partner, the competitiveness of the tendering process and the attractiveness of the
contract, this profit margin could range from between 6 to 12% of income.

<« If the Council transfers the management of its services to a trust operating in a
neighbouring local authority area it will have to accept that this organisation would
expect a contribution to its overall reserves account.

<« If the Council transfers the management of its services to a neighbouring area trust,
the governance arrangements will be determined by the partner trust.

MARCH 2010 3-060-0809 Draft Final Report: Knight Kavanagh & Page



NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL
OPTIONS APPRAISAL

OVERVIEW OF CURRENT SERVICE

NBC'’s leisure facilities stock is similar to that of other councils throughout the country and
is in need of significant investment. The main challenges facing each facility are identified
and summarised below:

Mounts Baths

4

4

Although an attractive example of a facility developed in the early part of the 20"
century, its Art Deco design has an impact on any refurbishment designs and
maintenance costs.

It has a town centre location which appears to be positive from a wider community
access perspective; although there can be issues with the corresponding night time
economy.

The facility has no designated car parking, although there is a public car park on the
opposite side of the main road.

The Council has converted part of the facility into a fithess suite, which is one of its
best performing amenities from a financial perspective.

The facility is landlocked, so there is no room for expansion of the site.

The facility is politically sensitive and holds a place in the hearts of many older
Northampton residents.

The facility serves the main inner city area of Northampton.

Danes Camp

4

4

Opened in January 1987, this is the Council’s newest facility and consists of a leisure
pool with fithess and dryside sports facilities.

Key areas of the facility are ‘tired’ and in need of investment to bring them, and the
facility as a whole up to current day standards.

It has a limited ‘swimming’ offer, and is more focused on play. However, there is a
need to refresh its leisure water offer as it is becoming dated.

The under 16 market is key user group, especially of the leisure pool.

After the facility was developed, housing was built in the areas around it, so it is
somewhat hidden from the main road. In essence users feel like they are entering a
housing estate to access the facilities.

Lings Forum

This facility is very tired and in need of significant investment.

Recent improvements to the pool changing facilities have been well received by
customers and have contributed, in part, to the increased use of the pool.

The replacement and wider refurbishment of the facility has always been part of a
wider master planning exercise for the Weston Favell shopping area; however, this
has not come to fruition. This is further complicated by the fact that any expansion of
the retail offer would contravene planning policies designed to develop and enhance
the town centre.

The facility is located adjacent to the shopping centre; however it does not have a
designated car park facility sufficient for its customer base. Customers previously
used the Focus (DIY Superstore) car park; however, restrictions have now been
placed on the use of this by Lings Forum customers.

MARCH 2010 3-060-0809 Draft Final Report: Knight Kavanagh & Page



NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL
OPTIONS APPRAISAL

4 Physically, in the context of its somewhat obscured location, the facility has limited
‘presence’, and could be easily missed.

<« It has the best financially performing fitness facility, but the worst performing pool.

< DDA access will be an ongoing issue with the facility unless significant funds are
invested to either replace, or significantly restructure and refurbish, it.

<« The facility serves the main area of deprivation in the east of the Northampton
borough.

Sports Development

It is not only the Borough’s facilities that have faced significant challenges; the Sports
Development service has seen regular reductions in its core budget over a number of
years. The service also has a number of externally funded temporary posts in place
where the funding is due to run out in 2011. Therefore, one of the key challenges will be
to identify alternative sources of funding to maintain these posts, albeit that their focus
may change.

MARCH 2010 3-060-0809 Draft Final Report: Knight Kavanagh & Page



NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL
OPTIONS APPRAISAL

VALUE FOR MONEY

A key component of this study is to determine whether the Council is achieving value for
money from its existing operation. In order to do this there is a need to consider:

<« The quality of facilities and services available.
< The income generated.
<« The impact they have on the local community.

Section 1 identifies the usage and reach of the service and the impact it has on residents.
Therefore, the key component in this section is to determine the efficiency and economy
of the service.

NBC'’s current service generates £2.8 million of income, but expends approximately £5.58
million; an annual subsidy of circa £ 2.7 million. Therefore, every pound spent at the
facility by customers and users is, in effect, matched by a comparable contribution from
the Council. However, it is important to recognise that, of the £2.7 million subsidy, £1.08
million comprises support services recharges.

A range of performance measures have been identified which indicates the general
performance of each of the facilities and service areas from a financial perspective.

Performance measure Lings Danes Mounts Sports Dev | Full service
Total income 813,282 1,000,997 | 886,572 126,272 2,827,125
Total expenditure 1,714,490 | 1,961,020 | 1,583,054 | 322,307 5,580,872
Total employee costs 781,593 899,611 746,092 193,971 2,621,267
Support services charges 339,188 371,959 305,788 61,739 1,078,676
Staffing as a % of income -96% -90% -84% -154% -93%
Staffing as a % of total

expenditure 46% 46% 47% 60% 47%
Income as a % of expenditure | -47% -51% -56% -39% -51%
Support costs as a % of

income -42% -37% -34% -49% -38%
Support costs as a % of

expenditure 20% 19% 19% 19% 19%

Analysis of the above identifies that:

< Mounts Baths is, in relation to the level of income generated, the most efficiently

staffed facility.

< Danes Camp generates the most income, but also incurs the highest level of
expenditure: this is in part, due to the level of staff costs. The reason for this is the
leisure pool which while it generates more income, costs more to staff because of the
design of the pool and its leisure features.
< Lings Forum barely generates sufficient funds to cover its staffing costs and, of the
three, has the highest staff cost as a percentage of income. A key feature of Lings
financial profile is the low level of income it generates from its swimming pool in
comparison to the other two sites.

MARCH 2010

3-060-0809 Draft Final Report: Knight Kavanagh & Page




NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL
OPTIONS APPRAISAL

Sports Development generates a proportion of its costs from external grants; this is,
for the purpose of this exercise, treated as income in the above scenario.

In general Support Services recharges equates to approximately 20% of total
expenditure. This would be a key area of saving which the Council itself would have
to achieve regardless of the savings from any externalisation process.

Fitness membership

The table below identifies the number of members each fithess facility generates per
piece of static fitness equipment. This is a key measurement of the success of the fitness
operation in attracting members.

Mounts Lings Danes Total
Total direct debit members 1554 1572 1368 4493
Stations 53 53 56 162
Members per station 29 30 24 28

A number of key comments can be made about NBC’s performance, including:

4

The service is punching above its weight in relation to current fithess membership;
particularly given the quality of the environment; facilities, car parking etc., within
which they are located.

The members per station ratios of c. 29-30 are higher that many high performing
trusts and private sector operators.

The above ratios are also high given the intensity of competition from the private
sector fitness market in Northampton.

It is interesting that Danes Camp has the lowest members per station ratio given that
it serves a relatively affluent catchment. This may be a reflection on the quality of the
offer and that its niche is slightly below that of the commercial health and fitness
operators; which residents local to Danes Camp can afford to access.

Swimming pool income

Lings Danes Mounts Total
Swimming fee 44,291 227,595 149,191 421,078
Swimming lesson Income 58,318 103,762 109,890 271,970
Pool hire fee 11,611 1,717 35,209 48,537

114,220 333,074 294,290 741,584

The above table reinforces some of the challenges faced by the service, especially in
generating income from the swimming pool at Lings Forum. Key points to note include:

4

4

Lings generates less than one third of the general swimming income than Mounts
achieves and less than a fifth of that generated at Danes.

This is key in relation to the staffing cost as a percentage of income as the pool still
requires a minimum staffing level regardless of the general levels of usage it attracts.

MARCH 2010 3-060-0809 Draft Final Report: Knight Kavanagh & Page 10




NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL
OPTIONS APPRAISAL

4 Lings also generates a significantly lower level of swimming lesson income than the
others. A key factor in this is the lack of car parking at or adjacent to the facility.
Although this does not appear to affect individual activities such as fitness, it may be
having a more profound influence on the propensity of parents to bring their children
to swimming lessons at the venue.

Summary

In summary, there are several key areas where NBC is achieving value for money from
its current operation. A key example is the fact that its fithess operation is achieving
higher levels of income than would normally be expected from comparable services.

Furthermore, it would appear that this income level will be improved upon during the
current financial year. However, it is also clear that the service has a range of challenges
which affect its ability to offer value for money. The main ones being that the quality of the
swimming facility and availability of parking at Lings Forum significantly affects the ability
of the Council to sell this service to local residents. Furthermore, the age and condition of
existing plant and machinery also affects the service’s ability to operate as efficiently as a
new facility.

In relation to value for money, the key challenge for the management options appraisal
for the service and the Council is the degree to which following can be achieved:

< Financial savings as a result of the management model implemented (e.g. NNDR
and VAT).

<« Increased income from the activities at each facility; especially in light of the existing
high income levels already achieved from fitness.

<« The potential for efficiency savings to be achieved within the operation of the service.

<« The potential savings from support services which the Council can achieve through
the externalisation process

MARCH 2010 3-060-0809 Draft Final Report: Knight Kavanagh & Page 11



NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL
OPTIONS APPRAISAL

TRUSTS - NOT FOR PROFIT DISTRIBUTION ORGANISATIONS (NPDO)
Types of trust — not-for profit distribution company (NPDO)

Two main types of trust vehicles have been developed to deliver sport and leisure
services. These are currently employed in the management and operation of leisure
services throughout the country and have a proven track record:

<« Company Limited by Guarantee (CLG).
<« Industrial Provident Society (IPS).

In addition to the above, a new company structure - the Charitable Incorporated
Organisation (CIO) is in the process of being developed by the Charity Commission. It is,
in effect, a simpler model of the CLG.

Company Limited by Guarantee (CLG)

A CLG is fairly quick and easy to establish. It is the most common type of company in the
third sector. Member and trustee liability is limited to the amount they have promised to
contribute to the company’s assets if it is wound up; usually a nominal sum of £1.
However, this does assume that said members and trustees have not acted unlawfully in
carrying out their duties.

A CLG is governed by company law (i.e. Companies House) and where it achieves
charitable status, is also required to operate within charity law and guidance (as identified
by the Charity Commission). The CLG must, therefore, submit returns to both of these
organisations on an annual basis. The nature and scope of responsibilities for both
company directors and trustees are well established in law with clear guidelines to consult
and follow.

One of the key advantages of a CLG is that it enables the company to attract “the great
and the good” onto its management board (i.e. as company directors and trustees of the
charity). However, such trustees are volunteers and their position is unpaid. As a result,
the challenge is to obtain people with the right level of altruistic interest in sport and with
the requisite level of skill and expertise to manage the company.

Furthermore, where the trust has been established by the local authority there are
specific guidelines as to the proportion of trustees allowed to be elected members or
employees of the local authority. The standard rule of thumb is that such representation
cannot comprise more than 20% of board membership. However, some trusts and
councils have taken the view that elected members do not necessarily make good
trustees (i.e. expertise, conflict of interest, time commitments) and have sought to identify
other individuals to be involved as Board members.

Industrial Provident Society (IPS)

An IPS model is registered under the Industrial and Provident Societies Acts. They are
currently governed by the Financial Services Authority (FSA), although there are moves
to incorporate them within the jurisdiction of the Charity Commission. An IPS can be
deemed to have charitable objects and can be viewed as an exempt charity and qualify
for the same financial advantages as a charitable trust.

MARCH 2010 3-060-0809 Draft Final Report: Knight Kavanagh & Page 12



NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL
OPTIONS APPRAISAL

The key difference between and IPS and a CLG structure is the ability of the IPS to
incorporate staff involvement on the board. Some local authorities, when considering
which type of management arrangement to install, have chosen to specify such staff
involvement as a key principle underpinning how the trust should function. However (at
present), the IPS cannot be registered as a charity and therefore only qualifies for
discretionary rate relief. Where the IPS model has been adopted, they do not appear to
have faced any major difficulties in achieving this level of rate relief.

A number of IPS models have been implemented in a range of leisure trusts. These
include, for example; Greenwich Leisure, Rossendale Leisure Trust, Salford Community
Leisure Ltd, and Oldham Community Leisure).

Rate relief

As identified above, both models can achieve rate relief, although the IPS model is
discretionary and the CLG model requires the company to have achieved charitable
status.

Relationship between the Council and a trust/NPDO

The relationship between a local authority and a trust is enshrined within the lease of the
facilities and land. The trust is required to demonstrate “independence from local
authority control” and must occupy any premises as the principal in its own right, and not
as the council’s agent. This is what enables a trust to qualify for national-non-domestic
rate (NNDR) relief.

Type of lease

In essence, there are two types of lease agreement: full or part repairing. The
implications of both of these are outlined below:

Full repairing lease

This option requires the trust (or the Council’s chosen operator) to take on full liability for
the repair and maintenance of the facility stock over the term of the lease. NBC would
expect it to meet all agreed condition liabilities for the length of the lease period and
return the facilities to the Council in what would, potentially, be an improved condition.

This would be a very costly solution for NBC as the Trust/operator would identify a cost
for every aspect of repair and maintenance associated with the service as well as all
other possible risks. It is likely that in this circumstance an investment schedule would be
required as part of the lease, and would be required to be carried out even if the
investment was not totally necessary.

In addition, if a trust is required to make significant capital investment over the term of the
lease (e.g., improvements to tired facility stock, upgrade of accommodation etc.) it would
be liable for the VAT on the work required to realise this investment. As a result, a full
repairing lease is rarely financially attractive. Furthermore, risks associated with a full
repairing lease are only minimised when a new facility is developed.

MARCH 2010 3-060-0809 Draft Final Report: Knight Kavanagh & Page 13



NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL
OPTIONS APPRAISAL

Therefore, it is unlikely that any trust or private partner would take on such a lease (at
least at a level of costs that would make such an arrangement worthwhile for the Council)
for NBC'’s facilities.

Part repairing lease

A part repairing lease is where NBC and a trust share responsibility for the future repair
and maintenance of the facilities. This would require NBC to maintain responsibility for
specific parts of the buildings and to specify which aspects of the identified condition
survey liabilities it will be responsible for and undertake to deliver. The trust would be
required to commit to undertaking its share of the condition survey items and the
enhancements it identifies for the facilities. However, a trust can only deliver on its
commitments if provided with the wherewithal and the funds to deliver these. A number of
key issues arise from this option, including:

Where the division of responsibility lies.

Whether there is an investment threshold applied to the split in responsibility.

The potential cost of investment by each organisation.

The ability/willingness of NBC to commit to responsibilities over the term of the lease.

The ability of the trust to demonstrate independence and to respond to customer

needs and changes within the market.

<« Current condition of facilities and likely investment requirements over the next 15-20
years.

4 The likely replacement schedule for facilities, major equipment, plant and machinery.

4 Recent investment in the facilities, or the expected life of the asset.

<« The most efficient way of procuring major capital works.

A A A A A

Capital investment

As identified previously, if a trust is required to invest capital in the facilities (i.e. via
borrowing) it will be liable for the VAT on any contracted works required to deliver this
investment. Over recent years, the trend has been for local authorities to borrow funds
via prudential borrowing and in return for said funds to be repaid via a reduction in the
grant. However, this arrangement only works where the investment results in increased
use and higher levels of net income at the facility.

Monitoring and evaluation

Within either of the above options it is important for NBC to ensure that it continues to
monitor the condition of its assets and that component elements of facilities are
maintained and repaired to the highest possible standard. In general the main areas of
dispute arise where it is perceived that the requirement to replace key items of plant and
machinery or fixtures and fittings is a direct result of a lack of maintenance. This
highlights the importance of detailed condition, suitability and sufficiency surveys and the
need for an open, transparent relationship between the Council and partner with regard to
the repair, maintenance and replacement of plant and machinery, fixtures and fittings.

MARCH 2010 3-060-0809 Draft Final Report: Knight Kavanagh & Page 14



NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL
OPTIONS APPRAISAL

Regardless of the type of lease, it is good practice for Council and the trust/operator to
set out respective maintenance and improvement strategies on a five yearly and annual
basis. This underpins development (and continuance) of a transparent relationship and
provides a basis for both to monitor the extent to which they do what they say they are
going to do and to assess the impact of not taking specific actions. It provides a solid
foundation for ongoing monitoring and evaluation of the assets and enables key issues to
be identified at the earliest possible stage. Furthermore, it enables the impact of
emergency repairs to be assessed within the context of ongoing maintenance.

Governance

As identified above, ‘standard’ trust arrangements, often attract concern with regard to
trust independence from the local authority and the desire/requirement of elected
members to have a place on the board ‘to protect the authority’s position’. It is important
to note that a trustee should not be hamstrung by external interests or influences when
performing his/her duties as a trustee. The principles of good corporate governance and
the highest standards of probity should be employed at all times. This can affect the
ability of NBC members to participate equitably in key trust and/or Council decisions. The
guiding principle is that all relevant interests in specific matters should be declared and
where appropriate, and if necessary, trustees/members should step aside when key
decisions are made.

It is also important for a trust to ensure that board recruitment is based on the skills and
expertise needed (and appropriate) to manage the company’s affairs. A clear matrix
should be developed which highlights such requirements at board level. Recruitment
should be undertaken on this basis rather than the need to ensure representation of
particular organisations. KKP has worked with a range of trusts with varying degrees of
expertise at board level. The following represent the types of skill and expertise we would
recommend that a board seeks to acquire (see also the examples table overleaf):

Legal.

Financial.

‘Business’.

Human resources.

Marketing.

Sector knowledge (e.g. health, inclusion, education).
Political/local government.

A A A A A A A

The other key governance aspect; one that there is a tendency to overlook, is the
relationship between the council and the trust. Some local authorities consider having an
elected member on the board sufficient to ensure that full governance requirements are
met. However, the communication and reporting function between the trust and NBC
must be considered. A key consideration is that the trust/operator is not just ‘left to it’ and
that there continues to be an advocate within the local authority. The “partnership” role/
function within the Council is critical. Furthermore, the CEO of the Trust must have
ongoing access to key senior NBC officers to ensure that communication channels are
maintained. Evidence suggests that the absence of, or limitations to, this continued
dialogue and advocacy role is the ‘achilles heel of many underperforming trust/ council
relationships.

MARCH 2010 3-060-0809 Draft Final Report: Knight Kavanagh & Page 15



NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL
OPTIONS APPRAISAL

Examples: Trusts recruiting key people into board director positions

Core skills Trustee experience

Legal Salford Trust has a lawyer on its board from a specialist mental health law
firm; he also has an active interest in hockey and cricket.

Financial Tameside Trust has a board member who is a prior head of finance from a
neighbouring Greater Manchester authority

Business acumen | Trafford, Salford and Tameside trusts have attracted a range of trustees who
either manage a small business or who have experience within larger
companies (e.g. Proctor and Gamble, Kelloggs).

Human resources | Tameside Trust has the previous head of human resources at the Council as
one of its nominated representatives.

Sector knowledge | Salford Trust has co-opted a senior regional development officer from Sport
England onto its Board.

Edinburgh Leisure has a well-known researcher in leisure as its chair.

Trafford has the Chief Executive of Lancashire County Cricket club on its
Board as well as the head teacher of a local specialist sports college.

Political/local All trusts have a range of elected members on the Board, but many keep this
government to a minimum to demonstrate independence

Transferring staff

The Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations 1981 and the
Acquired Rights Directive 77/187 ensure that staff wholly (i.e. 100%) or mainly (i.e. over
50%) employed by the service are transferred to the trust (or private sector partner) with
all employment rights intact. Therefore, changes to terms and conditions of employment
should be related to economic, technical or organisational issues and not for reasons
relating to the transfer of staff from one organisation to another.

This then presents a challenge for both local authorities and trusts/private contractors
where there is an expectation to reduce staffing costs in the initial years of the
externalisation process. In Northampton there is a perception that staff salary costs are
high and that there may be scope to reduce these. This may, however, contravene the
TUPE legislation.

Pensions

Pension provisions are not covered by the TUPE transfer process. Continuity of pension
provision is a key concern of staff when they transfer from one organisation to another. A
trust can either set up its own stakeholder scheme or apply to become an admitted body
to the Local Government Pension Scheme. The key challenge for any trust or private
sector contract is the decision on whether to have an open or closed scheme. This is
determined by what the Council is prepared to fund and whether or not it perceives that it
will contribute to a two-tier workforce for the host organisation.

MARCH 2010 3-060-0809 Draft Final Report: Knight Kavanagh & Page 16



NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

OPTIONS APPRAISAL

Key advantages and disadvantages

The following table summarises the key advantages and disadvantages of establishing a
trust to manage NBC'’s sports facilities and sports development

Advantages

Disadvantages

VAT benefits

Loss of NBC control. The relationship is one of
influence.

Up to 85% NNDR relief

Dependency upon NBC for reinvestment in
assets.

Capital expenditure (ability to borrow/ secure
capital outside of local authority regimes)

Success depends on attracting and retaining
quality trustees - skills and expertise.

Fits with Best Value, CPA and CAA

Trusts need support services infrastructure —
cost.

Opportunity to engage the local community
on the management board

Potential impact on central services personnel

Difficult for NBC to make savings from support
services

MARCH 2010

3-060-0809 Draft Final Report: Knight Kavanagh & Page

17



NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL
OPTIONS APPRAISAL

PARTNERSHIP WITH AN EXISTING TRUST

A growing number of existing trusts are looking to expand their operational management
domains outside and beyond the local authority in which they were originally established.
At first this process was relatively unusual, however it is similar to how private sector
leisure companies in this field developed and expanded.

The rationale for a trust expanding into NBC’s territory needs to be tested as there is no
financial benefit to trustees (unlike the dividend paid to shareholders). Therefore, the key
question to resolve is which organisation benefits from such an arrangement, the host or
the new partner organisation. The motives of the ‘predatory’ trust need to be considered
carefully. Is it about growing a business in a bid to improve service delivery through
efficient operational and organisational practices (e.g. support services) or is it empire
building for trustees and chief executives?

Varying degrees of trust partnership arrangements can apply ranging from one trust
supplying support services to another, to a concession contract won in competition.
Examples of trust partnerships include:

< Wigan Leisure and Culture Trust — it has recently won a contract to manage Abbey
and Tadcaster Leisure Centres and Selby Park on behalf of Selby District Council.

<« Carlisle Leisure — which operates facilities on behalf of Allerdale Borough Council.

<« North Country Leisure Ltd - having started life in Tynedale, it now operates contracts
in Alnwick and Copeland.

4 Fusion Leisure Ltd — which was originally established in the London Borough of
Southwark and now operates facilities on behalf of a range of local authorities
including Oxford City Council, the London boroughs of Lambeth, Croydon, and
Hillingdon and Mole Valley District Council.

<« Greenwich Leisure — perhaps the best known ‘predatory trust’; it now operates
facilities on behalf of seventeen London boroughs and is also involved in partnership-
based management arrangements outside the capital;

<« South Oxfordshire Leisure Limited — which also operates facilities on behalf of
Daventry District Council

Representation on the board

It should be borne in mind that the decision on the type of board structure to be employed
when partnering with a neighbouring trust, lies with the trust itself;, NBC will only be able
to influence this through negotiation. NBC will have to identify its ideal model and
evaluate whether the partnering trust can achieve this. This will be one of many
evaluation scores within an open procurement process. Where local authorities have
previously partnered with a neighbouring trust a range of different relationship structures
have developed including:

4 The authority’s facilities being subsumed within the Trust; this tends to occur where
the local authority in question is happy for this to happen.

< The development of a local consultation board for the contract, either with or without
representation on the main (‘central’) trust board.

4 The development of a local board (comprising trustees and local representatives)
with an equal representation of trustees on the main board. However, this tends to
get progressively less sustainable as more contracts are won.

MARCH 2010 3-060-0809 Draft Final Report: Knight Kavanagh & Page 18



NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

OPTIONS APPRAISAL

Key advantages and disadvantages

The following table summarises the key advantages and disadvantages of partnering with
an existing trust to manage NBC'’s sports facilities and sports development

Advantages

Disadvantages

An existing trust already has its legal framework
established.

The Board is already established so the Council
would need to identify if it can either:

- Gain representation on existing Board
- Establish a local Board

It can achieve VAT and NNDR benefits

Potential for conflict of interests between the
original and “new” Boards.

An existing Trust has support services in place,
so there should be economies of scale.

Potential for cross subsidy of Council grant
funding.

The option exists to test partner’s performance -
KPls, partnerships, relationships

Loss of Council control. The relationship is one
of contract management.

The Council can enter into a contractual
relationship rather than a grant Agreement

Partner trust would expect a contribution to its
overall reserves.

Fits with Best Value, CPA and CAA

Will involve a procurement process; which has
a cost.

Need to test the track record of managing full
range of services (i.e. sports development).

MARCH 2010

3-060-0809 Draft Final Report: Knight Kavanagh & Page

19



NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL
OPTIONS APPRAISAL

PRIVATE SECTOR PARTNERSHIPS

The original private sector partnership was normally a straight concession based contract
for usually 10 to 15 years, where the operator sometimes (particularly in the earlier
contracts set up) invested funds in the facility. Within such contracts there were no VAT
or NNDR benefits and the key driver was that the Council did not wish to directly provide
the service. Such arrangements were normally underpinned by a belief that the private
sector could do it more efficiently and cost effectively. A number still exist, although some
have been renegotiated or re-tendered in such a way as to achieve improved VAT and
NNDR benefits.

Within the Northampton context, a concession based private sector contract is not
considered to be worth progressing further as it is considered unlikely to achieve the
financial savings that the Council wishes to achieve from the externalisation process.

Hybrid private sector partnerships

In an attempt to counteract the financial advantages (and competitive edge) of the trust
approach, private sector companies developed the concept of the ‘hybrid’, or as is
sometimes referred to, the ‘sham’, trust. Under this arrangement parties agree to
structure the private sector company, or the relationship between the company and the
local authority in such a way as to qualify for mandatory and/or discretionary rate relief
and in some cases VAT concessions.

This is done by using a not for profit company or subsidiary. Via this method, private
operators can offer councils the benefit of tax savings, the ability to secure capital
investment and a more ‘commercial’ approach.

Each private sector partner has its own variation of the hybrid model, some able to
achieve charitable status and others not. It is open to legal challenge and is in some
circles viewed as a ‘sham trust’. Until the Government clarifies the situation, it is for each
council and its particular partner to assess the legality of each arrangement on its merit.
NBC needs to be aware that it would have to deal with the impact of any future decision
as and when it took place (e.g., possible back payment of NNDR and VAT savings).

Private sector partnerships have predominantly focused on the operation of sports
facilities, few have successfully taken responsibility for the sports development function
within an authority. This has been the normal approach from the outset and does not
appear to have significantly as the sector matures.

MARCH 2010 3-060-0809 Draft Final Report: Knight Kavanagh & Page 20



NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

OPTIONS APPRAISAL

Key advantages and disadvantages

The following table summarises the key advantages and disadvantages of partnering with
a private sector partner within a hybrid arrangement.

Advantages

Disadvantages

VAT and NNDR benefits

Each contractor has its own hybrid model so the
Council gets what it is given.

Potential savings are comparable with trusts.

Complex legal, administrative & organisational
structure associated with all hybrid models.

Business acumen (although in many instances
this has solely centred on fitness).

Loss of council control. The relationship is one
of contractual management.

Private sector can access capital - although this
is more normally more costly than the rates at
which the Council can borrow.

Council will have to deal with residual cost of
support services and contractor will have its
own structures in place.

Competitive tendering demonstrates that the
best value (cheaper?) option is identified.

Potentially open to legal challenge.

Potential economies of scale (i.e. bulk
purchasing)

Will involve a procurement process — which has
a cost.

Fits with Best Value, CPA and CAA

No track record managing sports development

MARCH 2010

3-060-0809 Draft Final Report: Knight Kavanagh & Page 21



NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL
OPTIONS APPRAISAL

MANAGEMENT OPTIONS APPRAISAL

The following table outlines the appraisal of each of the management options (i.e. NBC
in-house operation, new trust, neighbouring trust and a hybrid private sector partnership)
for the Council’'s sport and leisure facilities and sports development. The appraisal
considers the following key criteria and identifies the potential implications of each:

A A A A A A A A

Quality.

Need for capital.
Revenue implications.
Risk assessment.
Human resources.
Property and maintenance.
Council influence.
Legal issues.

Criteria

Option

Comment

Quality

In-house

The in-house service has achieved high standards of quality with very
positive scores in its APSE performance results. It has also achieved
very high levels of throughput from the free swimming initiative and is
the highest performing authority in the county and in the top quartile in
the East Midlands.

The Council has a good team delivering its service; it has generated
high levels of use and income from key activity areas (e.g. fitness),
although the quality of some facilities has hindered its ability to
operate them as efficiently and effectively as desired.

New trust

The current in-house team would be delivering the service as a new
trust; therefore, the Council could expect the same high standards
and levels of success as is currently delivered. Furthermore, greater
flexibility and speed of decision making could result in improved
quality as the service will be in a position ro respond to residents’
needs a lot quicker and more effectively.

Existing trust

Cultural Community Partnership is the only neighbouring trust in
Northants (i.e. East Northants) which may be interested in partnering
with the Council to operate its services. In addition to this there are a
range of existing trusts in the wider area (e.g. SOLL, Nexus — formerly
Wycombe Leisure Ltd) which have won contracts outside of their
original local authority host boundary.

The quality of trusts facilities and services is varied. This would need
to be tested via a competitive tendering process. NBC would need to
scrutinise the quality of trusts’ facilities and sources of investment.
Comparisons will need to be made with regard to external funding etc.

There are no guarantees that the quality of service will improve.

Private sector
hybrid

Each of the main private sector leisure operators has a presence in
the wider area (i.e. Northants, Bucks, Leicestershire).

Quality of private sector provision and services is as varied as that of
trusts. These would also need to be tested via a competitive process.
The private sector does not appear to have as good a track record
securing external funding; this may be linked to a lack of experience
delivering sports development services.

There are no guarantees that service quality will improve

MARCH 2010

3-060-0809 Draft Final Report: Knight Kavanagh & Page 22



NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL
OPTIONS APPRAISAL

Criteria

Option

Comment

Need for
capital

In-house

Irrespective of the management option put into place NBC will need to
identify the funds to invest in its facility stock. It will continue to own
the assets regardless of which type of organisation manages them.

New trust

A new trust can access capital, but this is either underwritten by the
Council or often achieved by capitalising NNDR savings, assuming
that they are ring-fenced for investment not taken as savings for NBC.

Existing
trust

It is unlikely that an existing trust will be able to raise significant funds
to invest in NBC facilities; they have their own challenges to deal with.

Private
sector
hybrid

The private sector could invest capital in the facility stock although
this would be costly compared to NBC prudential borrowing. This
would be tied into the term of the contract and may result in higher
ongoing revenue costs.

In recent years the private sector has invested lower levels of capital
in public sector facilities due to better rates achieved via prudential
borrowing. Given the current economic climate the private sector has
found it more difficult to secure major investment in its facility stock.

Revenue
implic-
ations

In-house

NBC is unable to source VAT/NNDR benefits that other management
models achieve. However, it is clear that the service currently
punches above its weight with respect to its fitness offer at facilities.

Given the Council’s drive for efficiency savings it is clear that
continuing with the in-house operation is not financially beneficial.

New trust

A new trust will save NBC at least £79k per annum. This is a worst
case scenario and assumes that it provides its own support services.
This situation could be drastically improved assuming that NBC works
with the Trust to achieve additional savings. This could increase
annual savings to approximately £250k.

Key savings areas for NBC will be in provision of support services.
This is currently costing the service over £1 million per year.

Existing
trust

A neighbouring trust may achieve similar savings comparable to those
of a new trust (circa £72k); however this may also impact on wider
NBC savings to be achieved (i.e. an existing trust may not wish to
receive support staff through the TUPE transfer process). The key
challenge in this respect is the existing trust’s financial performance,
especially with respect to health and fitness where the current team
excels.

Service revenue cost should be tested via a procurement process.

Private
sector
hybrid

A hybrid private sector partner will achieve circa £54k per annum
saving to the Council from the current cost (i.e. worst case scenario).
This is bases on an assumption that it will take profit from the service
at 6% of turnover (which is lower range).

This situation could be improved dependent upon the need for a
contract manager, the cost of support services and the level of profit
taken by the contractor. However, a key challenge will be maintaining
high current income levels from the fithess operation. The private
sector tends to excel where the prior fithess income is low; this is
traditionally where it invests in order to achieve higher income levels.
The current income achieved by the in-house team may make this
contract unattractive to the private sector.

Service revenue cost should be tested via a procurement process.

MARCH 2010

3-060-0809 Draft Final Report: Knight Kavanagh & Page

23



NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL
OPTIONS APPRAISAL

Criteria

Option

Comment

Risk
assess-
ment

In-house

The key risk associated with retaining the service in-house is the
potential increase in costs (e.g. staffing, pensions, etc) and the need
to implement service reductions to remain within budget.

New trust

The key risk associated with a new trust is that of failure as a result of
not setting it up properly. Some key reasons for trusts failing have
been ascribed to a combination of the following:

Insufficient funds to deliver the service (i.e. the Council retained
all of the VAT and NNDR savings).
Lack of ongoing investment in key facilities.
Breakdown in relationship between trust and local authority.
Lack of clear focus for the trust (i.e. leading on both strategy and
operational delivery)
The above risks might, potentially, result in NBC taking the service
back in house or seeking an alternative arrangement.

Existing
trust

The key risks associated with partnerships with existing trusts include:
- Poor service performance; although this is governed by the
contract.
A change in the operating philosophy; new CEO or if board
members change.
Lack of performance within one of the contracts puts significant
pressure on a core of senior managers, with limited back-up. This
could impact on other contracts
The company not achieving the targets stated in the procurement
process.

The above risks would potentially result in the Council taking the
service back in house or needing to find an alternative arrangement.

Private
sector
hybrid

The key risks associated with a contract with a private sector partner
with a hybrid arrangement include:
- Poor performance of the service although this is governed by the
contract.
A change in the operating philosophy — new CEO or a merger
with another company.
A change in contract manager; or as some authorities have
experienced, continual change in contract managers.
The company not achieving the targets stated in the procurement
process.
The Government closes the loophole associated with hybrid trust
arrangements.
Risks associated with poor performance will be determined within
the contract, therefore NBC has some element of protection.

The above risks could result in the Council having to take the service
back in house or finding an alternative contractual arrangement.

MARCH 2010

3-060-0809 Draft Final Report: Knight Kavanagh & Page

24



NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

OPTIONS APPRAISAL
Criteria Option Comment
Human In-house There would be no HR issues as staff will stay with the Council.
resourceé | New trust Staff would transfer to the new trust under TUPE.
NBC would be left to deal with residual support services staff and it is
likely that redundancies, redeployment or restructuring of departments
would be required. NBC and the new trust could seek to minimise this
by transferring appropriately skilled support services staff to the Trust,
or by the Council contracting to provide a range of support services to
the Trust (the trust would need to set the SLA for this arrangement).
Existing Staff would need to transfer to an existing trust under TUPE.
trust An existing trust will already have support services in place and is
unlikely to need services or staff from the Council.
NBC would have to deal with residual support services staff and
redundancies, redeployment or restructuring would be necessary.
Private Staff would need to transfer to a private partner under TUPE.
sectc_:r It normally has support services in place: NBC would need to deal
hybrid with residual staff via redundancies, redeployment or restructuring.
Property | In-house NBC would be liable for the cost of all repairs and maintenance.
f‘ main- | New trust The split in property and maintenance responsibilities will be set out in
enance the facilities lease. NBC and a Shadow Board will agree a budget for
facilities operation in line with these responsibilities. The Shadow
Board will need to undertake due diligence on the property and
maintenance budget to ensure that requirements can be met. (There
have been a number of instances where the trust has had insufficient
funds to enable it to honour maintenance responsibilities).
Existing NBC tender documents will outline what it expects the existing trust to
trust deliver. The Trust will then identify the anticipated cost of meeting its
requirements under the lease. This is done via a tendering process.
Private Tender documents will outline what it expects the operator to deliver.
sector The private partner will then identify the anticipated cost of meeting its
hybrid requirements under the lease. This is done via the tendering process.
There are instances of private contractors increasing maintenance
costs as not doing so would impact negatively on service quality.
Council In-house The Council will then have complete control over the service.
influence New trust The Council can have involvement in the Board of the Trust; up to
20% of the Board make up. The Council is able to influence the trust
by way of the Grant. However, the Council should be cautious in
using this too often as it can compromise the relationship between the
organisations. Furthermore, it is important that the trust’s funding is
linked into the Council’s medium term financial plan.
Existing NBC will determine the relationship with an existing trust by means of
trust the contract. It is important to ensure the contract is “tight but flexible”.
Governance arrangements with the existing trust will have to be
resolved (i.e. part of main board or local board).
Private NBC will determine the relationship with a private partner by means of
sector the contract. It is important to ensure the contract is “tight but flexible”.
hybrid Local “board/trust” arrangements will be determined by the type of
hybrid structure the successful partner has established.
MARCH 2010 3-060-0809 Draft Final Report: Knight Kavanagh & Page 25




NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

OPTIONS APPRAISAL
Criteria Option Comment
Legal In-house No legal issues are anticipated with this option given that the service
issues remains with the Council.
New trust Legal issues associated with establishing a new trust include:
- The drafting of leases.
- The drafting of the grant agreement.
- TUPE and pensions issues associated with transferring to a new
trust.
- Legal advice for the Shadow Board prior to creating the company
and transferring services.
- NBC’s approach to dealing with residual support services staff.
Existing Legal issues will be determined by the procurement process if NBC
trust decides that it wishes to secure a new partner to deliver its services.
Likely issues include:
* The drafting of leases.
* The drafting of contract documents for a procurement process.
- TUPE and pensions issues associated with transferring to a new
partner.
- .NBC'’s approach to dealing with residual support services staff.
Private Legal issues determined by the procurement process if NBC decides
sector that it wants to secure a new partner to deliver its services. Likely
hybrid issues include:
- The drafting of new leases
- The drafting of contract documents for a procurement process.
* TUPE and redundancy issues associated with transferring to a
private partner.
- .NBC'’s approach to dealing with residual support services staff.
MARCH 2010 3-060-0809 Draft Final Report: Knight Kavanagh & Page 26



NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL
OPTIONS APPRAISAL

FINANCIAL APPRAISAL

The financial appraisal of the options identifies a range of savings which can be achieved
from service externalisation. These are based on four fundamental assumptions about
the options:

< The NNDR savings that can be achieved by implementing the management model.

4 The VAT savings that can be achieved by implementing the management model.

<« The ability of the management model to increase income from the facilities.

<« The ability of the management model to run the facilities more efficiently and
economically.

Given the Council’s drive to have a more economically efficient service we have excluded
a standard private sector partnership as it does not achieve the VAT and NNDR benefits
of the other management models.

The financial model is used to evaluate each of the management options against the
current in-house operation. A number of assumptions are used to differentiate the various
models. These are based on the known financial advantages and disadvantages of the
various models; they take into account any likely improvement in trading from the current
operation. In summary the key assumptions for each model are as follows:

New Trust:

<« Some improvement in key income areas such as fitness, pool and hall hires and
instructed activities; but nothing significant given current performance.

<« VAT advantages on key income activities such as fitness, room hires, general sports
use.

<« National non-domestic rate relief of 85%.

< Increased insurance costs; as it will be a new company with no track record.

4 VAT on expenditure.

Existing trust:

<« Some improvement in key income areas similar to a new trust.

<« VAT advantages on key income activities such as fitness, room hires, general sports
use.

<« National non-domestic rate relief of 85%.

4 Increased insurance costs; but slightly less than a new trust.

< VAT on expenditure.

Hybrid private sector:

<« Some improvement in key income areas similar to a new trust.

<« VAT advantages on key income activities such as fitness, room hires, general sports
use.

<« National non-domestic rate relief of 85%.

4 Increased insurance costs; similar to an existing trust. This is based on the fact that
some companies have group insurance which includes a wider range of services
(e.g. prisons, hospitals, MOD installations, etc).

< VAT on expenditure.

MARCH 2010 3-060-0809 Draft Final Report: Knight Kavanagh & Page 27



NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL
OPTIONS APPRAISAL

It should be noted that the above assumptions can only be tested through a procurement
process, but that they are built on experience of evaluating tenders.

The outcome of the financial appraisal is as follows:

Hybrid Existing
Description 2008/9 outturn | New trust private trust

Total employees 2,621,268 2,621,268 2,497,828 2,621,268
Total premises 849,645 745,138 782,576 745,138
Total transport 13,922 15,731 15,731 15,731
Total supplies & services 702,667 805,319 810,437 801,551
Total support services* 1,309,132 1,339,091 1,339,091 1,339,091
Total capital charges 84,240 84,240 84,240 84,240
Total income -2,827,125 -3,150,918 -3,169,603 -3,154,087
Total VAT payable/receivable -52,453 -52,453 -52,453 -52,453
Total subsidy 2,701,294 2,407,416 2,307,847 2,400,478
Variance from 2008/9 actual -293,878 -393,447 -300,816

(* It is assumed that the cost of support services charges will remain the same as it will be the
responsibility of NBC to achieve such savings — rather than the management models).

As can be seen from the above summary, the hybrid private sector option appears to be
the most financially efficient model when compared to the current operation; with a new
and existing trust options very similar. However the above model has not taken into
account the additional costs associated with the various options. The following table takes
into account the extra costs that each management option is likely to incur. Again, this is
based on current support structures and lessons learnt from other trusts throughout the
country and from the evaluation of tenders to manage leisure services on behalf of other
local authorities.

*Additional costs

New Trust

Hybrid private

Existing trust

Support services

180,000
(assumed 100%
direct saving from
transfer)

75,000 (assumed
0% direct saving
from transfer)

90,000 (assumed
50% direct saving
from transfer)

Trust CEO/Contract Manager 0 50,000 20,000
Audit 9,500 9,500 9,500
Systems (e.g. financial) 10,000 0 0
Profit 0 190,176 94,623
Office accommodation 15,000 15,000 15,000
214,500 339,676 229,123
Total -180,000 -45,000
Variance from 2008/9 actual -259,378 -53,770 -116,693

MARCH 2010

3-060-0809 Draft Final Report: Knight Kavanagh & Page




NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL
OPTIONS APPRAISAL

The key assumptions on the additional costs to be applied to each management option
can be identified as follows:

New Trust:

4

4

The breakdown of support services costs for a new trust have been based on the
following staff structure and salary costs (including on-costs), along with other
professional support that will be required:

Designation Total £
Finance Manager 40,950
Payroll Manager 24,570
Finance Assistant 24,570
Cashier 15,210
Sales and Purchase Ledger Clerk 15,210
Finance Admin 14,040
HR Assistant 18,720
Total staff cost 153,270

Professional support costs

HR Adviser 15,000
Legal Adviser 12,000
Total support costs 180,270

In addition to the above support services costs a new trust will also require office
accommodation for these staff, an external audit of its accounts and funds to ensure
it has the right financial and HR system/software to manage its business.

Existing trust:

4

Although an existing trust would have some of its support services in place (e.g.
Finance Manager) it will require additional support to deal with the volume of financial
administration and additional staff. It is also likely to incur increased professional
costs.

Although the trust will have a chief executive in place there may be a need to
promote one or two key staff within the existing structure to take lead roles; it should
also be noted that NBC would be likely to have to pay any additional salary costs
associated with the chief executive’s improved package.

In addition to the above, an existing trust will also require office accommodation for
its staff and an external audit of its accounts; however, it is anticipated that it would
have its own financial and HR system/software in place.

The existing trust is unlikely to take on the contract ‘for nothing’; therefore, it is
assumed that it would be seeking a modest contribution to its central reserves of
approximately 3% of income.

MARCH 2010 3-060-0809 Draft Final Report: Knight Kavanagh & Page 29




NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL
OPTIONS APPRAISAL

Hybrid private sector:

4 Itis assumed that the hybrid private sector company would have support services in
place, however from experience it is likely to identify circa £75,000 support services
costs as a contribution to increased central costs within the organisation.

4 The organisation is unlikely to employ a new contract manager as this would be a
TUPE transfer and the officer would come under the leadership of its national and
regional structure.

< In addition to the above, a hybrid private sector company will also require office
accommodation for its staff and an external audit of its accounts; however, it will have
its own financial and HR system/software in place.

4 It has been assumed that the hybrid private sector company would wish to build in a
profit margin of approximately 6% of income; this would equate to £190,000. It should
be noted that this is considered to be at the lower end of the spectrum.

Based on the above financial appraisal it is clear that there is very little difference
between the savings to be achieved from each model, but that the establishment of a new
trust is the most financially viable. In comparison to other authorities which have gone
through this exercise the level of savings to be achieved at NBC are, in our view,
considerably lower. This is a direct result of the level of income currently being achieved
from the fitness offer at NBC’s three sites. Therefore, there are comparably small
improvements in income to be achieved from the service compared to other authorities,
so there is greater emphasis on what savings the model achieves and what additional
savings can be gained from the Council’s support services.

Potential for additional savings

When assessing each of the options for potential additional savings the key area under
consideration is the existing support services costs. The current support services equate
to circa 20% of the service’s total expenditure or 38% of its total income.

As identified previously, NBC will be the organisation which drives the savings from
support services; however some management models are more appropriate than others
in assisting this. As identified above, the different models require differing levels of
support services given that one will be starting afresh, whereas it is presumed that others
already have the majority of support services in place. Therefore, if managed correctly the
creation of a new trust provides the Council with the greatest opportunity to achieve
savings from its support services. As an example, if the new trust’s support services can
be recruited from appropriate staff within the Council’s support services then circa
£180,000 additional savings can be achieved. Added to the £79k saving that the trust
option achieves, the potential total saving from the externalisation process would be circa
£260,000.

Cultural trusts

There has been a recent trend towards the creation of cultural trusts, however this has
not been considered within the scope of this report as there has been a clear indication
that NBC may consider developing its cultural offer via an alternative arrangement.
Northampton Theatre Trust manages the Royal and Derngate Theatre within the town
and this may be a more appropriate model to consider for the management of the
Borough’s wider cultural offer. Furthermore, it can be difficult to find appropriately skilled

MARCH 2010 3-060-0809 Draft Final Report: Knight Kavanagh & Page 30



NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL
OPTIONS APPRAISAL

and experienced trustees who wish to engage in the management of a wide ranging
cultural trust.

COMMERCIAL SECTOR APPROACH

As part of this study KKP was asked by the NBC Chief Executive to test and soft market
test a much more radical approach to local authority leisure provision with the commercial
health and fitness sector. The key focus of this aspect of the study was to ensure that

« Participation levels and the frequency of participation in sport and physical activity in
the borough rises over the next few years.

< ...but to test whether this can be delivered through an innovative relationship with a
commercial fitness provider.

Therefore, the scope of service which the Borough Council should consider providing was
streamlined and focused on ‘exercise’ linked in to addressing the health inequalities
across the Borough. As such, the concept taken to the market was that NBC would
provide:

4 Access to swimming and fitness (only) at a range of core facilities throughout the
Borough.

4 Access to a range of school sports halls and synthetic pitches to deliver its sports
development service.

This in effect, is a much more formula driven approach than is currently provided and
would necessitate provision of four strategically located facilities across Northampton.
These would all have an identical facility mix consisting of:

Swimming pool - 6 lane 25m pool, with a small teaching pool

Fitness suite x 100 stations

Group fitness studios x 2

Ancillary facilities to service these activity areas; including café, and vending.
Car parking for approximately 150 cars.

A A A A A

In order to address the requirement to increase levels and frequency of participation in
sport and physical activity (especially among the most disadvantaged communities) this
approach would provide high quality, accessible fithess for the whole community.
However, there is an assumed requirement that the operator would focus upon the most
disadvantaged communities in Northampton.

Approximately 62,000 Northampton residents reside within the top 30% most deprived
communities in the country. The current service reaches 5.2% of these residents.
Therefore, an innovative approach for NBC would be to ensure that the subsidy for the
service is focused on usage by these residents rather than on the bricks and mortar of the
service (as is the case at present). The rationale for this is that the operator would have
sufficient quality facilities to attract a wide range of users, while having an incentive to
attract some of the most disadvantaged residents in the Borough. However, this approach
ties the subsidy for the service into one which is ‘means tested’ which may not be
palatable to elected members, existing leisure centre members or some residents.

MARCH 2010 3-060-0809 Draft Final Report: Knight Kavanagh & Page 31



NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL
OPTIONS APPRAISAL

The approach assumes that NBC would not be required to fund the total cost of
disadvantaged residents’ access to facilities. There would be a requirement for the
resident to commit to being a member of the facility and pay a monthly membership fee.

It is envisaged that there would be two key stages in the commercial operator’s approach
to providing services on behalf of the Council:

< Increase the proportion of members at the facility from the most deprived
communities in Northampton.

<« Increased participation frequency; raising the proportion of these members who are
undertaking 3 x 30 minutes of physical activity per week.

This would require the Council to incentivise the operator for increasing membership and
then to provide a supplementary incentive based on the achievement of 3 x 30 minutes.
However, it should be noted that the incentive for increasing members from the most
deprived communities needs to have at least the same financial reward as can be
achieved from non-subsidised members. If this were not to be the case, the greater the
proportion of subsidised members, the less income the operator can generate from the
facilities.

Similarly, when providing additional incentives for 3 x 30 minutes, it is anticipated that
there would have to be a reduction in subsidy for those that are just members, but a real
incentive for their conversion into regular users.

Risks associated with this approach
There are a number of risks and challenges associated with this approach including:

<« The degree of comfort within the Council at being so specific about its target market
for sport and physical activity, as it requires a clear line to be drawn about who is
subsidised and why:

4 Means tested provision.
<« Targeting the most deprived and the least likely to vote.
< Potentially alienating the wider community.

<« The need to develop new facilities to achieve this arrangement.

<« The ability of NBC to monitor the scheme effectively as there is a real capacity for
operator abuse of the arrangement.

4 There need for effective, detailed, accurate management information and potential
”"physical activity tracking” of members.

<« The clear financial risk to NBC if the commercial partner over achieves in attracting
members from the most deprived communities (i.e. it could lead to an ‘earned
increase’ in the level of subsidy).

4 If the commercial partner under-achieves there is a political risk of the Council
entering a contract which purely subsidises membership to a private health club.

4 Existing customers and those having to pay more may vote with their feet or
potentially use their political vote ‘against’ the Council.

4 There is the potential that deprivation definitions and indicators may change which
may expand the scope (and thus the cost) of any means testing regime.

4 There is considerable uncertainty within the commercial sector given the number of
actual and potential mergers and acquisitions taking place.

MARCH 2010 3-060-0809 Draft Final Report: Knight Kavanagh & Page 32



NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL
OPTIONS APPRAISAL

4 There is the potential that the existing health and fithess market within the town may
react against a single operator being given a subsidised foothold in the area.

<« It is unlikely that the commercial operator would wish to take on existing NBC staff;
this may result in significant redundancy costs.

The commercial sector’s response

The initial response from the commercial sector to this approach can be summarised as
follows:

The level of interest in taking on a contract of this type has been rather cool as a result of
the following:

4 The sector does not measure (and is, in all honesty, not particularly interested in)
participation frequency; its key driver is membership numbers.

<« There may be issues with regard to the quality of specific brands; at both a local and
national level.

4 The commercial sector views the mixing disadvantaged members with those that can
afford to pay as an issue. As a result, adoption of this type of experimental approach
would need to be heavily incentivised.

4 The commercial sector will be reluctant to take on NBC'’s existing facilities and would
ideally prefer new ones; in the right location with the right mix of facilities and
services.

4 There would be a need to build in funding for refurbishment and improvement every 8
to 10 years.

<« There would be a need to develop a minimum guarantee figures for operating the
service in order to minimise the level of risk to shareholders.

Summary

In summary it is clear that the commercial health and fithess sector is not ready to
consider an innovative approach to providing physical activity for the local authority
market, especially one which focuses on exercise frequency for residents often in most
need of exercise. Similarly there is a real challenge for local authorities and health
partners in identifying who, and why certain residents receive a subsidy for their sport and
physical activity.

This requires a radical approach but regardless of NBC’s commitment to it, it is only likely
to attract a commercial sector partner if the contract is written in such a way that it
protects the commercial partner rather than the Council. Therefore, it is almost certainly
not appropriate for NBC to consider progressing with this type of approach with the
commercial sector.

However, this part of the study raised some significant questions around the current
service and the need for any new approach to consider frequency of use as a KPl moving
forward. This also requires the Council to engage with health partners in a more focused
way and for all partners to adopt take-up and/or exercise frequency as a key
measurement for all partners.

A key issue for the Council in developing a more focused approach to its partnership with
the health sector is the degree to which joint initiatives are managed by the right service.

MARCH 2010 3-060-0809 Draft Final Report: Knight Kavanagh & Page 33



NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL
OPTIONS APPRAISAL

As an example the current health improvement officer in the Council does not sit within
the Culture and Leisure team. There would, potentially, be greater synergy and impact if
the post-holder was position to work with and influence the service to drive wider health
improvement targets.

CONCLUSION

There are a number of key conclusions that can be drawn from the evaluation of the
management options appraisal for the sports facilities and sports development service at
Northampton Borough Council. These include the following:

4

4

4

The current in-house team is generating significant income from the health and
fithess offer at the facilities and is, in our view, punching above its weight.

The quality of the facilities impacts on the income generated from specific activity
areas; this is specifically relevant in relation to swimming income at Lings Forum.

The private sector does not have a track record in managing sports development
services, which is a key component of Northampton’s portfolio of services.

Although the subsidy for the service in 2008/9 equated to £2.7 million; £1.08 million is
support services recharges. This is a key area where the majority of savings can be
achieved.

The private sector market has traditionally won contracts on the basis of being able
to generate increased income from health and fitness. It is clear that there will limited
or no opportunity to make such gains within Northampton. In fact the level of health
and fitness income presently being achieved, may be a deterrent to the private sector
bidding for a contract with the Council.

The financial evaluation of the various options identifies that, in general, the minimum
potential saving is relatively low compared to other authorities. This is on the basis
that there is minimal additional income to be generated (on a sustained basis) from
the service.

The financial evaluation identifies that in general the difference between each of the
options is minimal (varying from circa £50k to £80k) with the creation of a new trust
the most economically advantageous option.

The hybrid private sector and existing trust options would expect a financial return
(profit and contribution to reserves) from operating the service.

In addition, the creation of a new trust enables the Council work with the shadow
trust to transfer appropriate and key support services staff into the trust, thus
enabling it to generate additional savings (up to £180k).

None of the options brings any guaranteed access to capital (not even the private
sector within the current economic climate). The most efficient method of securing
capital will be prudential borrowing.

TUPE would apply to all staff transfers.

The Council will need to resolve its position on pensions provisions for the service
moving forward and whether or not it will require the ne operator to become an
admitted body to the LGPS.

Regardless of which option is progressed it is likely that the Council will require
additional specialist support to achieve its preferred management model.

It would appear that the more radical option of entering into a contract with a
commercial health and fitness provider to provide sport and physical activity services
to residents would be a high risk option for the Council. Furthermore, it is almost
certainly not attractive to the private sector and it is unlikely that commercial
operators would wish to be judged (and more importantly be remunerated on the
basis of) frequency of use, as it does not currently measure (and value) this element
of performance.

MARCH 2010 3-060-0809 Draft Final Report: Knight Kavanagh & Page 34



NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL
OPTIONS APPRAISAL

RECOMMENDATIONS

Given the above detail within the report, the following recommendations should be
implemented by NBC:

4 Create a new leisure trust to operate its facilities and sports development service on
behalf of the Council. The rationale for this is that:

<« It provides the most economically advantageous option for the Council.

<« It provides greater opportunities for the Council to achieve savings from its
support services.

<« It retains any surplus income from the service within the service rather than it
being lost to profit or redirected into another trust contract facilities.

<« It builds on the successful operation built up by the current in-house team.

4 Not to progress with either of the hybrid private sector, existing trust or commercial
health and fitness options as these will not, in our view, provide the most
economically advantageous or effective options for the Council.

< To ensure that key health related KPI's (e.g. 3 x 30 minutes) are built into the
performance measures for the new trust and that the PCT and health practitioners
are fully engaged as stakeholders in this.

<« To agree the Council’'s approach for pension provisions for the new trust (i.e.
admitted body to the LGPS or money purchase scheme).

< Identify funding (circa £100k) to buy in the appropriate specialist advice to establish
the trust with the objective of transferring the service on 1% April 2011.

4 To consider the extent to which the new trust will be responsible for the repair and
maintenance of the facilities.

<« To consider the degree to which the Council would want to be involved in the
management of the new trust (i.e. up to 20% membership on the Board of trustees).

4 To consider the type of trust the Council would want to create

< Industrial and Provident Society (IPS).
< Company Limited by Guarantee.
<« Charitable Incorporated Organisation

<« To consider, in principle, the proportion of savings that will be ring-fenced in the
short, medium and longer term to be invested in improving the quality of facilities and
services for residents; and to ensure the service continues to generate optimum
levels of income (especially from fitness).

MARCH 2010 3-060-0809 Draft Final Report: Knight Kavanagh & Page 35



	Agenda
	6 Rent Payment Incentives
	7 Hunsbury Hill Disused Public Conveniences: Report on Objections Received to the Proposed Disposal of Public Space
	8 Countywide Scrutiny Arrangements
	08 Countywide Scrutiny Arrangementz Appdx (updated)

	9 Delapre Abbey Stable Block
	09 Delapre Abbeyz Appdx 1
	09 Delapre Abbeyz Appdx 2

	10 Neighbourhood Model
	11 Leisure and Sport Strategic Business Review - Management Options Appraisal
	11 Leisure Sport SBR - Management Optionz Appdx


